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NEEH
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Chairman’s Statement and

Management Discussion and Analysis

TEREREEBHRRON

The board of directors (the “Board”) of Easyknit
Enterprises Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
is pleased to present the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31
March 2012 together with comparative figures.
These consolidated financial statements have been
reviewed by the Company’s audit committee.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of
a final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2012
(2011: nil).

CORPORATE RESULTS

For the year ended 31 March 2012, the
Group recorded a turnover of approximately
HK$286,916,000, representing a decrease of
approximately HK$61,076,000 or 17.6% from
approximately HK$347,992,000 for the year 2011.

Loss attributable to owners of the Company
for the year ended 31 March 2012 amounted to
approximately HK$42,730,000 (2011: profit of
approximately HK$65,060,000). The loss was
mainly attributable to (i) the loss of approximately
HK$16,677,000 on the fair value change of
investments held for trading; and (ii) the impairments
of goodwill and intangible asset for approximately
HK$39,313,000 and HK$19,791,000 respectively.

The basic loss per share for the year ended
31 March 2012 was approximately HK$0.078
(2011: basic earnings per share of approximately
HK$0.152).
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Chairman’s Statement and
Management Disoussion and Analysis (continued)

FEBREREEENW®RD T #)

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year, the Group was principally engaged
in the business of garment sourcing and exporting,
property investment and investment in securities.

Geographical Analysis of Turnover

During the year, the turnover from the business of
garment sourcing and exporting was mainly derived
from customers in the USA. Rental income from the
investment properties were derived from properties
located in Hong Kong and the PRC.

Garment Sourcing and Exporting

For the year ended 31 March 2012, this
segment recorded a turnover of approximately
HK$280,918,000 (2011: approximately
HK$342,700,000) representing approximately
18.0% decrease comparing with year 2011. Cost
of sales for the year amounted to approximately
HK$256,138,000 (2011: approximately
HK$309,487,000). The loss of approximately
HK$61,799,000 (2011: profit of approximately
HK$3,115,000) was mainly due to the impairment
losses recognised on goodwill and intangible asset,
the decrease of turnover and an increase in cost of
garments and resulted in a fairly low profit margin
for exported products.

Property Investment

For the year under review, the aggregate rental
generated from the property investments was
approximately HK$5,998,000 (2011: approximately
HK$5,292,000) of which approximately
HK$2,988,000 and HK$3,010,000 were generated
from the properties in Hong Kong and the PRC
respectively.
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Chairman’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

FERENEEENWR DT

The Group has two blocks of factory premises and
four blocks of dormitories with a total gross floor
area of approximately 52,624 sg.m. in Huzhou, PRC.
In addition, the construction works on a new factory
block target to be completed by late 2012.

On 16 February 2012, the Group has entered into
a provisional sale and purchase agreement to
purchase a property located at the Ground Floor,
No. 6 Cannon Street, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
at a consideration of HK$180,000,000. Details of
the acquisition of the property are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 16 February 2012.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 March 2012, the Group has bank
balances and cash amounting to approximately
HK$205,477,000 (2011: approximately
HK$181,876,000). Basically, the Group’s funding
policy was to finance the business operations
with internal generated resources. As the Group
has no bank borrowings, no gearing ratio of
the Group was presented (2011: nil). As at 31
March 2012, the Group’s current ratio was
approximately 7.1 (2011: approximately 6.6)
which was calculated on the basis of current
assets of approximately HK$290,253,000 (2011:
current assets of approximately HK$330,468,000
and assets classified as held for sale of
approximately HK$227,000) to current liabilities of
approximately HK$41,012,000 (2011: approximately
HK$49,887,000). During the year, the Group
serviced its debts mainly through the internal
generated resources.
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Chairman’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

FEBREREEEBRRD @

Capital Structure

During the year, there was no change to the share
capital of the Company. As at 31 March 2012,
the total number of issued ordinary shares of the
Company was 550,686,675 shares.

Charge on Assets

The Group did not have any charges on assets as at
31 March 2012 (2011: nil).

Material Acquisitions and Disposals

The Group had no material acquisitions or disposals
of subsidiaries and associated companies during
the year.

Exposure on Foreign Exchange Fluctuations

Most of the Group’s revenues and payments are in
US dollars, Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi dollars.
During the year, the Group did not have significant
exposure to the fluctuation in exchange rates and
thus, no financial instrument for hedging purposes
was employed. The directors considered the risk of
exposure to the currency fluctuation to be minimal.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group did not have any significant contingent
liabilities as at 31 March 2012 (2011: nil).

Capital Expenditure and Capital Commitments

During the year under review, the Group spent
approximately HK$168,000 (2011: approximately
HK$59,000) on the acquisitions of property, plant
and equipment.
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Chairman’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
FEREREEBMRED @)

As at 31 March 2012, the Group has capital
commitments in respect of capital expenditure
contracted for but not provided of approximately
HK$171,850,000 (2011: approximately HK$1,344,000).

PROSPECTS

Looking forward, the operating environment of
the garment sourcing and exporting business was
challenging due to record high price of cotton,
continued appreciation of Renminbi against US
dollars and overall price surge resulting from
inflation. However, the Company will continue to
enhance its competitiveness by providing customers
with more products of better quality and design.

The current global financial situation remains
complex and volatile and the quantitative easing
measures implemented by the United States
government has introduced hot money to Hong
Kong and further pushed up the property prices and
rentals during the year. However, we believe that
the Hong Kong government has sufficient effective
policies to curb property market speculation.
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Chairman’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

FEBREREEEBRRD @

EMPLOYMENT AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

As at 31 March 2012, the Group had 43 employees
(2011: 40). Staff costs (including directors’
emoluments) amounted to approximately
HK$14,515,000 for the year under review (2011:
approximately HK$14,518,000). The Group
remunerates its employees based on their
performance, experience and prevailing industry
practice. The Group has set out the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme for the Hong Kong’s
employees and has made contributions to the
stated-sponsored pension scheme operated by
the PRC government for the PRC employees. The
Group has a share option scheme to motivate
valued employees.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to extend my
sincere gratitude to our staff and fellow directors
for their contribution to the Group’s development
and cordial thanks to the continuing support of
our customers, suppliers, business associates and
shareholders.

KWONG Jimmy Cheung Tim
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Hong Kong, 15 May 2012
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Biographical Details of Directors

EEZEE

MR. KWONG JIMMY CHEUNG TIM
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Kwong, aged 69, is an executive director,
chairman, chief executive officer of the Company
and a member and chairman of the Executive
Committee. He is also an executive director,
president, chief executive officer and authorised
representative, and a member and chairman of
the Executive Committee of Easyknit International
Holdings Limited (“Easyknit International”). Mr.
Kwong was graduated from The University of Hong
Kong in 1965 and was admitted as Barrister-at-
Law in the United Kingdom and Hong Kong in 1970
and 1973 respectively. He has over 30 years of
experience in the legal field. He serves as director
of various subsidiaries of the Company and Easyknit
International. Mr. Kwong was appointed to the
Board as an independent non-executive director
in 2003, and was subsequently re-designated as
an executive director in 2007. In December 2007,
Mr. Kwong was appointed as chairman and chief
executive officer of the Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors (continued)

EECER @)

MS. LUI YUK CHU
Deputy Chairman

Ms. Lui, aged 54, is an executive director and
deputy chairman of the Company and a member
of the Executive Committee. She is also an
executive director and vice president, and a
member of the Executive Committee of Easyknit
International. Ms. Lui has been involved in
the textiles industry for over 30 years and has
extensive experience in design, manufacturing,
marketing and distribution of apparel. She
serves as director of various subsidiaries
of the Company and Easyknit International.
Ms. Lui was appointed to the Board as an executive
director in 2003 and was appointed as deputy
chairman in 2006. She is the mother of Ms. Koon Ho
Yan Candy, an executive director of the Company.

MS. KOON HO YAN CANDY

Ms. Koon, aged 27, is an executive director and
of the Company and is a member of the Executive
Committee since 2010. Ms. Koon obtained a
Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics and Politics
from the University of Durham in 2007. She also
received her Bachelor of Laws degree and Legal
Practice Course qualification in 2009 from the
College of Law, England. Ms. Koon is also an
executive director and a member of the Executive
Committee of Easyknit International. Ms. Koon is the
daughter of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, the deputy chairman
of the Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors (continued)

EECER @)

MR. TSE WING CHIU RICKY

Mr. Tse, aged 54, is a non-executive director of the
Company. He is also a non-executive director of
Easyknit International. Mr. Tse obtained a Master’s
Degree in Business Administration from Adam Smith
University of America in the United States in 1996.
He has more than 30 years of experience in garment
manufacturing and merchandising. Mr. Tse was
appointed to the Board as an executive director
and vice chairman in 2005, and was subsequently
re-designated from vice chairman to chairman and
appointed as chief executive officer in 2006. In
2007, Mr. Tse was re-designated from an executive
director to a non-executive director of the Company
and resigned as chairman and chief Executive
officer.

MR. KAN KA HON

Mr. Kan, aged 61, is an independent non-executive
director of the Company since 2003. He is also
a member and chairman of Audit Committee,
a member of Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee. He holds a Bachelor’s
Degree in Science from The University of Hong
Kong and is a fellow member of The Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He has over 30 years of experience
in accounting and finance. Mr. Kan is also an
independent non-executive director of Victory City
International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 0539).
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Biographical Details of Directors (continued)

EECER @)

MR. LAU SIN MING

Mr. Lau, aged 50, is an independent non-executive
director of the Company since 2004. He is also a
member and chairman of Remuneration Committee,
a member of Audit Committee and Nomination
Committee. He is a fellow member of The
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and
a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He has over 30 years of
experience in accounting and auditing and is now a
director of Deep Blue CPA Limited.

MR. FOO TAK CHING

Mr. Foo, aged 78, is an independent non-executive
director of the Company since 2007. He is also a
member and chairman of Nomination Committee,
a member of Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee since 2007. He is currently a Partner of
Messrs. Liu, Choi & Chan, a firm of solicitors and
notaries in Hong Kong and has been practising in
the legal field for more than 30 years. He obtained
his LL.B. from the University of London in the United
Kingdom in 1968 and his diploma in Chinese Laws
from the University of East Asia in Macau in 1987.
Mr. Foo was admitted as a solicitor in England
and Wales in 1972 and Hong Kong in 1973 and
as a barrister and solicitor in the State of Victoria,
Australia in 1982. He is a Notary Public and a China
Appointed Attesting Officer.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

The Board of Directors of the Company (the
“Board”) is committed to achieving high standards
of corporate governance by emphasising
transparency, independence, accountability,
responsibility and fairness. The Board strives to
ensure that effective self-regulatory practices exist
to protect the interests of the shareholders of the
Company and to enhance long-term shareholders’
value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Company
has applied the principles of, and complied with,
all the code provisions of the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “Code”) set out in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) except for the following deviation.
Nevertheless, such deviation is considered by the
Board to be immaterial given the size, nature and
circumstances of the Group.

Code provision A.2.1

Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim is the chairman
and chief executive officer of the Company. The
Board considers that the combination of the roles
of chairman and chief executive officer will not
impair the balance of power and authority between
the Board and the management of the Company
as the Board will meet regularly to consider major
matters affecting the operations of the Group. The
Board is of the view that this structure provides the
Group with strong and consistent leadership, which
can facilitate the formulation and implementation
of its strategies and decisions and enable it to
grasp business opportunities and react to changes
efficiently. As such, it is beneficial to the business
prospects of the Group.
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Corporate Governance Report continued)
TEERRE @

COMPLIANCE WITH MODEL CODE OF THE
LISTING RULES

The Company has adopted the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) of the Listing Rules as
the code for dealing in securities of the Company
by the Directors. After specific enquiry, all Directors
confirmed that they have complied with the required
standard of dealings set out therein throughout the
year ended 31 March 2012. Relevant employees
who are likely to be in possession of unpublished
price-sensitive information of the Group are also
subject to compliance with written guidelines on no
less exacting terms than the Model Code.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises seven directors,
with three executive directors, one non-executive
director and three independent non-executive
directors. The composition of the Board during the
year and up to the date of this report is set out as
follows:

Executive directors:

Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim —
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Ms. Lui Yuk Chu — Deputy Chairman

Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy

Non-executive director:

Mr. Tse Wing Chiu Ricky

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. Kan Ka Hon

Mr. Lau Sin Ming
Mr. Foo Tak Ching
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The biographical details of the existing directors are
set out in the “Biographical Details of Directors on
pages 10 to 13 of this annual report.

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2012, the
Company complied with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2)
of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at
least three independent non-executive directors with
at least one independent non-executive director
possessing appropriate professional qualifications,
or accounting or related financial management
expertise. The Board has received from each
independent non-executive director an annual
confirmation of his independence and considers
that all the independent non-executive directors are
independent under the guidelines set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Board members have no financial, business,
family or other material/relevant relationships with
each other except that Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy, an
executive director of the Company, is the daughter
of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, the deputy chairman of the
Company.

BIEEZERCERAFREI0RE
13EZI[EEZREEIA -

B Z2012F3A31BILEER K
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FERBCHBEFEYH X5
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The Board met four times during the year ended 31 Z £2012F3A31BHILFE &%
March 2012. The individual attendance records of &€#AM4 e - ARESHFEE
the directors at the Board meetings were as follows: Z@@ 3% /R8s 7| ¢

Number of

meetings Attendance
Name of directors attended rate
EEHE HESRRH HE=R
Executive directors
HITES
Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim BRANLE 4/4 100%
Ms. Lui Yuk Chu BEHRL T 4/4 100%
Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy BRI L 4/4 100%
Non-executive director
FHITES
Mr. Tse Wing Chiu Ricky oK A 4/4 100%
Independent non-executive directors
BYFHTES
Mr. Kan Ka Hon BRHITE 4/4 100%
Mr. Lau Sin Ming FEHELE 4/4 100%
Mr. Foo Tak Ching (EEEY i bitas 4/4 100%

AEEXEEAERLT 2011/2012 4F#H;
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The Board has reserved for its decision or
consideration on the matters covering mainly the
corporate strategy, board composition, material
transactions and investments, risk management,
internal control and other significant policies
and financial matters. The Board has delegated
responsibility for day-to-day management of the
Group through the Chief Executive Officer down to
the executive management. The respective functions
of the Board and management of the Company have
been formalised and set out in writing which was
approved by the Board in 2005. Such arrangement
will be reviewed periodically.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim currently assumes
the roles of both the chairman and chief executive
officer of the Company. The reasons for the
deviation from the Code provision A.2.1 are
explained in the section headed “Corporate
Governance Practices” above.

Retirement and re-election of directors

The Bye-laws of the Company provide that (1)
every director is required to retire by rotation at
the annual general meeting no later than the third
annual general meeting after he was last elected or
re-elected and the directors to retire at every annual
general meeting shall be decided by the Board;
and (2) any director appointed by the Board to fill a
casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall
hold office until the next following general meeting
of the Company (in case of filling a casual vacancy)
or until the next following annual general meeting of
the Company (in case of an addition to the Board)
and shall then be eligible for re-election at the
meeting.

REESRFTAEEZLEHETEZBE
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KRB - BRERE  RIPEE R E A
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Non-executive directors

There are currently four non-executive directors
on the Board, three of them are independent. All
the non-executive directors of the Company are
appointed for a specific term of 3 years and are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
at the annual general meeting of the Company in
accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four committees, namely
the Remuneration Committee, the Audit Committee,
the Nomination Committee and the Executive
Committee with clearly defined written terms of
reference. Each committee reports back to the
Board on its decisions or recommendations after
each meeting for further discussion and approval,
unless there are legal or regulatory restrictions on
its ability to do so.

Remuneration Committee

The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee has been revised in March 2012 in full
compliance with the provisions set out in the Code.

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises
4 members: 3 independent non-executive directors,
namely Mr. Lau Sin Ming (Committee Chairman),
Mr. Kan Ka Hon and Mr. Foo Tak Ching; and an
executive director Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim.
The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee
include (i) to make recommendations to the Board
on the Company’s policy and structure for all
remuneration of directors and senior management;
(i) to make recommendations to the Board on
the remuneration packages of all directors and
senior management; (iii) to review and approve
performance-based bonus; and (iv) to ensure that
no director or any of his associates is involved in
deciding his own remuneration.
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The primary objective of the Company’s
remuneration policy is to attract, retain and motivate
the personnels by providing fair reward for their
contributions to the Group’s performance. In this
context, the remuneration policy is to set the overall
remuneration package at a competitive level and
in a form that permits additional remuneration to
be earned for high performance over a sustained
period. The remuneration packages are determined
with reference to the time commitment and
responsibilities of each individual, the Company’s
performance and the prevailing market conditions.

During the year ended 31 March 2012, two
Remuneration Committee meetings were held. The
individual attendance records of the committee
members were as follows:

Name of committee members

ZEEREHSA

Mr. Lau Sin Ming AZHELE
Mr. Kan Ka Hon BEHTE
Mr. Foo Tak Ching BEiEtgt s
Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim BESRALAE

(appointed on 30 March 2012)

The Remuneration Committee has reviewed and
recommended the remuneration packages for each
director and senior management of the Company
for the year ended 31 March 2012 for the Board’s
approval.

RRAHMB R EEBMZRS]
BENABAN  HRFRARER
RErEL 2 ERERATO®R - BE
UL - FEBRBIRT Ak 2 B
RHFMEE  TURTHFR—EHEA
R S RINE A REVEINT BN 2 T
AL - HFMFBEE2ZHEIALL
HBERLBE  ARRZRE A
FRITHRARERE °

HE012E3/831BIEEERN " &
RiT2RFMEEGSH - EREZE

SXEZHFEREHIIT

Number of

meetings Attendance
attended rate
HESRRH HE=R
1/1 100%

1/1 100%

1/1 100%

1/1 100%

(ZFR201243A4300)
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For the year ended 31 March 2012, the
main components of the executive directors’
remuneration were directors’ fee, basic salary,
benefits in kind, discretionary performance based
bonus, retirement benefits and participation in the
share option scheme adopted by the shareholders
of the Company in June 2002 (the “Share Option
Scheme”).

The non-executive director and independent non-
executive directors did not receive any discretionary
bonus or other benefits from the Company for the
year ended 31 March 2012. But each of them was
entitled to a director’s fee and was eligible for the
Share Option Scheme subject to the approval of the
shareholders of the Company.

During the year ended 31 March 2012, no director
was involved in deciding his own remuneration.

Audit Committee

The terms of reference of Audit Committee has
been revised in March 2012 in compliance with the
provisions set out in the Code.

The Audit Committee currently comprises 4
members: 3 independent non-executive directors,
namely Mr. Kan Ka Hon (Committee Chairman),
Mr. Lau Sin Ming and Mr. Foo Tak Ching; and an
executive director Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim.

The principal duties of Audit Committee include, (i)
to oversee the relationship with the Auditor; (ii) to
review the interim and annual financial statements
before publication; and (iii) to oversee the Group’s
financial reporting system and internal control
procedures.
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During the year ended 31 March 2012, 3 Audit
Committee meetings were held. The individual
attendance records of the committee members were

as

follows:

Name of committee members

ZEERERSR

Mr. Kan Ka Hon BEBEE
Mr. Lau Sin Ming FEHEE
Mr. Foo Tak Ching BEETE
Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim BES& A% 4

(appointed on 30 March 2012)

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Audit
Committee (i) reviewed the reports from the Auditor,
accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Group, management representation letters,
and management’s response in relation to the
annual results for the year ended 31 March 2011
and the interim results for the six months ended
30 September 2011; and (ii) reviewed the financial
reports for the year ended 31 March 2011 and for
the six months ended 30 September 2011 and
recommended the same to the Board for approval.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the
management and the Auditor the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company

for the year ended 31 March 2012.

Number of
meetings
attended

HEERRH

3/3
3/3
3/3
11

(ZFH2012E3A30H)

HE012F3A831BIFEFER B
BRIT3NBERELESS &

=R

SXEZ HFECEHIT

f&@5% &

Attendance
rate

i

100%
100%
100%
100%
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 30
March 2012 and has adopted the terms of reference
of Nomination Committee in full compliance with the
provisions set out in the Code.

The Nomination Committee currently comprises 4
members: 3 independent non-executive directors,
namely Mr. Foo Tak Ching (Committee Chairman),
Mr. Kan Ka Hon and Mr. Lau Sin Ming; and an
executive director Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim.

The Nomination Committee has adopted a written
nomination procedure specifying the process and
criteria for the selection and recommendation of
candidates for directorship of the Company. The
Nomination Committee will base on the criteria in
the procedure (such as appropriate experience,
personal skills and time commitment, etc) to identify
and recommend proposed candidates to the Board.
During the year, the Nomination Committee did not
hold any meeting.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee currently comprises all
the executive directors of the Company, namely Mr.
Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim (Committee Chairman),
Ms. Lui Yuk Chu and Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy.
It meets as and when required between regular
Board meetings of the Company, and operates as
a general management committee under the direct
authority of the Board. Within the parameters of
authority delegated by the Board, the Executive
Committee sees to the implementation of the
Group’s strategy set by the Board, monitors the
Group’s investment and trading performance,
funding and financing requirements, and reviews the
management performance.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 March 2012, the audit service
fee and non-audit service fee paid/payable to the
Auditor were approximately HK$1,159,000 and
HK$1,058,000 respectively. The non-audit services
mainly related to interim results review, preliminary
results announcement, review of the financial
information for major transaction and the mandatory
conditional offer of the Company’s shares.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The directors acknowledge their responsibilities for
preparing the financial statements of the Group.
With the assistance of the Accounts Department,
the directors ensure that the preparation of the
financial statements of the Group are in accordance
with the statutory requirements and applicable
accounting standards. The directors also ensure
timely publication of the financial statements of the
Group.

The statement of the Auditor regarding their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements
of the Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report on pages 38 to 39.

RS
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining
a sound and effective system of internal control
of the Group to safeguard the shareholders’
investment and the Group’s assets, and reviewing
its effectiveness.

The Group’s internal control system, includes
a defined management structure with limits of
authority and segregation of duties and periodic
review by the Board on the operational and
financial reports which were prepared by the
management or the Auditor. The internal control
system is to safeguard assets against unauthorised
use or disposition, ensure maintenance of proper
accounting records for provision of reliable financial
information for internal use or for publication,
and ensure compliance with relevant laws and
regulations. The system aims to provide reasonable,
but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss, and to manage rather than
eliminate risks of failure in operational systems and
achievement of the Group’s objectives.

The Board has conducted a review of effectiveness
of the system of internal control and risk
management of the Group for the financial year
ended 31 March 2012. The Board has also
discussed in details the results of the review in the
regular board meeting. Recommendations have
been suggested to and adopted by the management
of the Group in order to enhance its system of
internal control and risk management functions.

The Board is of the view that the Company has
the appropriate accounting systems and adequate
human resources to discharge the financial reporting
function of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2012. Training programmes and budget will be
provided from time to time for further enhancement.
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Directors’ Report
EEERE

The directors present their annual report and the
audited consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company.
The principal activities of the Company’s
subsidiaries are set out in note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2012 are set out in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on pages 40
and 41.

SHARE CAPITAL

The details of movements in the Company’s share
capital during the year are set out in note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group spent HK$168,000
on acquisition of property, plant and equipment.
The details of movements in property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year are set out
in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group’s investment properties were revalued
as at 31 March 2012 by independent professional
property valuers and the gain arising on changes
in fair value of investment properties, which had
be charged directly to profit or loss, amounted to
HK$33,979,000. Details of these are set out in note
17 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

The Company has no reserves available for
distribution at 31 March 2012.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and
up to the date of this report were:

Executive directors:
Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Lui Yuk Chu (Deputy Chairman)
Koon Ho Yan Candy

Non-executive director:
Tse Wing Chiu Ricky

Independent non-executive directors:
Kan Ka Hon

Lau Sin Ming

Foo Tak Ching

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-law 99, Mr.
Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim and Mr. Kan Ka Hon will
retire from office at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company by rotation and, being
eligible, have offered themselves for re-election.

The Company has received annual confirmation
from each of the independent non-executive
directors as regards their independence to
the Company and considers that each of the
independent non-executive directors is independent
to the Company.

None of the directors has a service contract which
is not determinable by the Company within one
year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Biographical details of the directors are set out on
pages 10 to 13 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed
“Connected Transactions”, there was no contract
of significance, to which the Company or any of
its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director
of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisting at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed
“Connected Transactions”, there was no contract
of significance between the Company or its
subsidiaries and a controlling shareholder or any of
its subsidiaries subsisting during or at the end of
the year, and there was no contract of significance
for the provision of services to the Company or any
of its subsidiaries by a controlling shareholder or
any of its subsidiaries.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 March 2012, the interests and short
positions of the directors and the chief executives
of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(“SFQO”)) as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 352 of the
SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”), pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) were as follows:

Name of director Capacity
ExEE LS
Ms. Lui Yuk Chu Beneficiary of a trust (note i)
BEHKRLL EEXAAMEI)
Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy  Beneficiary of a trust
(note i)
BRI (Hfztii) FEEX@mA

EERFETRAERKRG RAAE
B3z R

R2012%3A31H RRAIEE N
T ETHA B AR B o E (1 FE 5
FE(EERBHFRLBEKRANES
RHIEER ) EXVE) 2% H - 188
BhsEFPHREEBEEFLBAER
FIE 2GR EARRBETFTHEELE
LMARE  MKBELETRARESHE
TEHFRXZFHRESFA([EESFH]])
RERABNARRREBBER S
BREARI(TBRAT]) 2 s Kok B
T

Approximate

Number percentage

of ordinary to issued
shares held ordinary shares
(long position) of the Company

BREE EARE
RHEE ERTEE
(FR) ROWEDL
398,450,671 72.36%
398,450,671 72.36%
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES (continued)

Notes:

(i) 174,592,987 shares and 223,857,684 shares were registered in the name
of and were beneficially owned by Landmark Profits Limited and Goodco
Development Limited respectively, both companies were wholly-owned
subsidiaries of Easyknit International Holdings Limited (“Easyknit
International”). Sea Rejoice Limited was interested in approximately
21.95% of the issued share capital of Easyknit International and it was
wholly-owned by Ms. Lui Yuk Chu. Magical Profits Limited (“Magical
Profits”) was interested in approximately 36.74% of the issued share
capital of Easyknit International. Magical Profits was wholly-owned by
Accumulate More Profits Limited which in turn was wholly-owned by
Hang Seng Bank Trustee International Limited as trustee of The Magical
2000 Trust (the beneficiaries of which include Ms. Lui Yuk Chu and her

family members other than her spouse).

(i) Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy, the daughter of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu and a
director of the Company, was deemed to be interested in the shares by

virtue of her capacity as one of the beneficiaries of Magical 2000 Trust.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2012,
none of the directors or chief executives of the
Company had any interests or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
had been recorded in the register kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Details of the Company’s share option scheme and
movements of options during the year are set out in
note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

EERFETRAERKRG KR
RIBFPzER 2

it -

() 174,592,987 & 1 223,857,684 % & 19} Py
Landmark Profits Limited X R #E R AR A
ZEBEBL WTHEAERES MAMEATE /7%
*%lf‘”‘ilﬁﬁﬁ A(kEERDZ2ENE

A Z£FFRARNRKBEERZEBITRAS
%ﬁ%@ﬂ.%%z*&ﬁﬂﬁﬁi\Bﬂ%i%kt%ﬁ%
% ° Magical Profits Limited ([ Magical Profits])
RkBEBBRE ETRASEEL36.74% 2 1
# ° Magical Profits B Accumulate More Profits
Limited2 & # B * & #£ B3 The Magical 2000
Trust(EX B ABREEHRL T REKKKE(H
FoiBkoh)) 2 {55 AHang Seng Bank Trustee
International Limited 2 & %A °

(i) BARKL(REFRLINLZRARTER)R
The Magical 2000 Trust ¥z A2 —2Z 10 #iR
AR EERER -

72012 3 A 31
H JRN/N $3Z_JE TTHABHE
RAR TTZ LEMERER (TR RE
FREBEERPIEXVE) 2R K - HE
BRI HEHFEACZIARRFRE
78 7 N B 15 I 55 352 R A5 ﬁﬁTE
A skiERESRIRER
BARDE R PT 2 RSO R

ESREROUES 2 &R
ARal BhESFE RN FEAR
g 2 B3N & /\M‘%i&iﬁﬁﬁi
29 °
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES (continued)

No share options were granted to, or exercised
by, the directors during the year. There was no
outstanding option granted to the directors at the
beginning and at the end of the year.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year
ended 31 March 2012 was the Company or any of
its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable
the directors of the Company to acquire benefits
by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or any other body corporate, and
none of the directors or any of their spouses or
children under the age of 18, was granted any right
to subscribe for the equity or debt securities of
the Company or any other body corporate nor had
exercised any such right.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2012, the persons (other than the
directors or the chief executives of the Company)
who had an interest or a short position in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

EEREROAES 2EN )

EENFALEER THITEEME
B RAFRENRFE - SERK
TEESERTZERE -

R EXPTHREE SN - AARHHEEM
ME LR REZE201243 A318 It
FEAZAMNEEBRET Y ETAL
B BEARRESAEBEALNT
AR EMEABEE 2 R ERM
B URTESEHHEE BN+
AT 2 FRER T EAEFARE
RARIHEMEABE 2 RAKER
Er o REITE AR ZFER o

FERR

R2012F3F318 ' RIBEEFEHLH
EGHIE3BHRAEARRABETIFE
ZELEMARE - FERARRGD K
BEARD 2 ERIABE 2 AT (ESEHK
ARBZEBITHAERINIT

Approximate
Name percentage to
of ordinary issued ordinary

shares held  shares of the

Name of substantial shareholder Notes  Capacity (long position) Company

BEER MALAERf

IZRRER Wit &t ROEE (F2) EBRODEI

Koon Wing Yee i Interest of spouse 398,450,671 72.36%
BXE [

Landmark Profits Limited i&ii Bengficial owner 174,592,987 31.70%

EalAA

AEEXEEAERLT 2011/2012 4F#H;

31



Directors’ Report continued)

EEERE@
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continueq) FERRD
Approximate
Name percentage to
of ordinary issued ordinary
shares held  shares of the
Name of substantial shareholder Notes  Capacity (long position) Company
KELE (ARAEEf
IZRRER Mi# g RO%A(FR) EERONEDL
Goodco Development Limited i&ii Beneficial owner 223,857,684 40.66%
EFERBRAR ERAAA
Easyknit International i&ii Igterest of controlled corporation 398,450,671 72.36%
SEHEE
Magical Profits i &ii Iﬂterest of controlled corporation 398,450,671 72.36%
AR 2
Accumulate More Profits Limited f Iﬂterest of controlled corporation 398,450,671 72.36%
R B ER
Hang Seng Bank Trustee International Limited i&iv Trustee 398,450,671 72.36%
[EFEA
Hang Seng Bank Limited iv- Interest of controlled corporation 398,450,671 72.36%
BERTBRAR TEHAE 2k
The Hongkong & Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited ~ iv Interest of controlled corporation 398,450,671 72.36%
BRLEEERTERAT AR 2 B
HSBC Asia Holdings BV iv Iﬂterest of controlled corporation 398,450,671 72.36%
REHEE B
HSBC Asia Holdings (UK) iv- Interest of controlled corporation 398,450,671 72.36%
REHEE R
HSBC Holdings BV iv- Interest of controlled corporation 398,450,671 72.36%
SRR 2 s
HSBC Finance (Netherlands) v Interest of controlled corporation 398,450,671 72.36%
SEHEE 2
HSBC Holdings plc iv Iﬂterest of controlled corporation 398,450,671 72.36%
ESRRERAR] REHEE B
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Notes:

(i)

(il

(iv)

The 398,450,671 shares related to the same block of shares in the
Company of which 174,592,987 shares and 223,857,684 shares were
respectively registered in the name of and were beneficially owned by
Landmark Profits Limited and Goodco Development Limited, both were
wholly-owned subsidiaries of Easyknit International. Sea Rejoice Limited
was interested in approximately 21.95% of the issued share capital of
Easyknit International and it was wholly-owned by Ms. Lui Yuk Chu.
Magical Profits was interested in approximately 36.74% of the issued
share capital of Easyknit International. Magical Profits was wholly-
owned by Accumulate More Profits Limited which in turn was wholly-
owned by Hang Seng Bank Trustee International Limited as trustee of
The Magical 2000 Trust (the beneficiaries of which include Ms. Lui Yuk
Chu, a director of the Company, and her family members other than her
spouse). Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy, the daughter of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu and
a director of the Company, was deemed to be interested in the shares
by virtue of her capacity as one of the beneficiaries of the Magical 2000
Trust.

Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim and Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, being directors of
the Company, are also directors of Landmark Profits Limited, Goodco
Development Limited and Easyknit International. Ms. Koon Ho Yan

Candy, being a director of the Company and Easyknit International.

Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, being a director of the Company, is also a director of

Sea Rejoice Limited and Magical Profits Limited.

Hang Seng Bank Trustee International Limited was a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Hang Seng Bank Limited. Hang Seng Bank Limited was
owned as to approximately 62.14% by The Hongkong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited. The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited was wholly-owned by HSBC Asia Holdings BV
which was a wholly-owned subsidiary of HSBC Asia Holdings (UK).
HSBC Asia Holdings (UK) was wholly-owned by HSBC Holdings BV
which in turn was wholly-owned by HSBC Finance (Netherlands). HSBC
Finance (Netherlands) was a wholly-owned subsidiary of HSBC Holdings

plc.

FERRD

Wzt

(iii)

(iv)

4398,450,671 i fik 17 B AL R R —4LAR 7 < %
R 17 o % 174,592,987 i 7 2 223,857,684 AR X
39 BILA Landmark Profits Limited REZEREE
RARZEEEL  THABRES MMIRKE
Bz 2BMBAR - ¥ ERDANKEREZ
BETRARERLD21.95% 2 Eamm LA EE K
Z L2 EHE - Magical Profits Limited 77k H
BT AT S 436.74% 2 # x ° Magical
Profits Limited H Accumulate More Profits
Limited® & # & * & 4 @ The Magical 2000
Trust(EX B ABEARAEFERRLTRAR
A B (BB M) 2 {558 AHang Seng Bank
Trustee International Limited 2 &% &AM
AT (REFHRLINAZREARAER)EAM A
The Magical 2000 Trust ¥@m A Z— 2 51 * #1R
ARBROTPHEERERZ - BEXBEEREERLLZ
ffE - RIRE 7 KB RO S A1 398,450,671
PR ARt o B e A

ARBAEESBEAEEREEIHRLTINA
Landmark Profits Limited - SRR A F K%
KEBABRZEZR - BEARETARRA RkEBERE
ZEE-

EXUzTAEALTE
Profits Limited 7 # % -

245¥ B IR A ) & Magical

Hang Seng Bank Trustee International Limited
REBERTERAAZEZEMBRAR - FE L
BESRTERAANELARTERRAES
#62.14% 2w - BF LBELRITAERAA
fHSBC Asia Holdings BV2%&#A » MHSBC
Asia Holdings BV J5HSBC Asia Holdings (UK) 2
2EMBAF - fHSBC Asia Holdings (UK)
HSBC HoldingsBV 2 &#A * HSBC Holdings
BV HSBC Finance (Netherlands)% & % & °
HSBC Finance (Netherlands) J3/E L2 B R 1
Az 2EMBARTE -
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continueq)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2012, the
Company had not been notified of any interests or
short positions in the shares and underlying shares
of the Company which were required to be recorded
in the register kept by the Company under Section
336 of the SFO.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

As announced on 16 June 2011, Easyknit Global
Company Limited as tenant (an indirectly wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company) entered into
a tenancy agreement (the “Tenancy Agreement”)
with Wellmake Investments Limited as landlord (a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Easyknit International
Holdings Limited which is a substantial shareholder
of the Company) in relation to the renewal of the
tenancy of the premises at Unit A, 7th Floor, Hong
Kong Spinners Building, Phase 6, 481-483 Castle
Peak Road, Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon, Hong Kong
(the “Premises”) for a period of 12 months from
1 May 2011 to 30 April 2012 at a monthly rental of
HK$206,800.

Wellmake is therefore a connected person of the
Company pursuant to Rule 14A.11(4) of the Listing
Rules and the annual cap of HK$2,481,600, being
the aggregate annual rental for the Premises
based on the monthly rental of HK$206,800, under
the Tenancy Agreement constituted a continuing
connected transaction of the Company.

FERFR#)

BRI EXFTHTEEIN  RM2012F3 A
31H » AREIWEEMESEAATIA
RRRBIEE S LB E 155 336 1§
BEMEFE 2ERMARZARABIRG
RIEER D 2 ERZAR ©

BEXRS

R2011 6816 H * A QA fHE2E
BB AR KERIRAR AR (1EAME
PIREECNEBRAFELER
¥X )NERBEDEITVEN DS
([ZWmz])  BELAXKEBREEER
RRABIZEZENBRAR @ Mk HE
BARARZEEMRE - BEZ W
BEREBURBEBNERDES

B481-483 R BB Y M AECHTZ
AZEMTREREK  HEB20114F
5A1B#£AH12{8AE2012F4 A
30H - £ A% A 206,800 T °

BRI FTRBIE14A11(4) 15 BLA
ARBIZBEEANLT - ZipEm B
ARAZ—BHEEBERS - Zh#
ETZFE LR A2,481,600%8 T

Bl B 206,800/ 8 Tt ER B @AY
ERNFEHSBE -
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

The directors, including the independent non-
executive directors, of the Company have reviewed
the continuing connected transaction and confirmed
that it was entered into:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business;

(2) on terms no less favourable than those available
to independent third parties; and

(8) on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders as a whole.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the year, the five largest suppliers of
the Group accounted for approximately 96% of
the Group’s purchases and the largest supplier
accounted for approximately 28% of the Group’s
purchases.

The five largest customers of the Group accounted
for approximately 99% of the Group’s turnover and
the largest customer accounted for approximately
89% of the Group’s turnover.

None of the directors, their associates and
shareholders of the Company (which to the
knowledge of the directors of the Company, own
more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) have
an interest in the Group’s five largest suppliers or
customers.

BEXS )

ER(BEBUIFNTES)CEHLK
FRYS A YR

(1) R~ RARIEFEIL

(2) BB BIUE =7 R Z &
PHETT R

Q) BATAREARAKAEEER
B BRI -

FRREBREF

FRN - AEEZSAMEREARAEE
ZERBERAI96% - M AMHER G
AEB 2 RERD28% -

REBZSABPHAEB ZEXR
#4199% @ MEARFPREAER &
EE489% o

BEEF HEIBRAREARZ
BE(SAAAZ EEMA - BEAA
AR 5% A L) R AR 5 AR
S PR AR -
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PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

There was no purchase, sale and redemption of the
Company’s shares by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries during the year ended 31 March 2012.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the
Group is set up by the executive directors of
the Company on the basis of their performance,
experience and prevailing industry practice.

The emolument of the directors of the Company
is determined by the Board after recommendation
from the Remuneration Committee, having regard
to the time commitment and responsibilities of
individual directors, the Company’s performance
and the prevailing market conditions.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme
as an incentive to directors and eligible employees.
Details of the scheme are set out in note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under
the Company’s Bye-laws or the laws in Bermuda
which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available
to the Company and within the knowledge of its
directors as at the date of this report, the Company
has maintained a sufficient public float as required
under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange.

BE - HEREERSD

HE2012F3A31HIEFER » XA
A EAMMBAREES  HE
KB R TR AR AR Z B -

B BUR

AEEREZHFMBRIIARRAIH
TEFRNFCRA  EREATE
REDIMETE

ARREZZHMOAEST SR
MEZBevRR  RENESZH
B RN B - ARRl 2 RERRTT
MRRETE °

ARBIERMBEES - FRYE
ENERERER CRE  stElZFB
R R MR R 29 -

BARERE

ARl R BRI B R EADIGE
BEBER KX REARABR
SRR B BERBEMA -

RARBIFRE

BRIEATHLFTARAZEEH] LE
ARBEZMAE  RABER - K
NAIERBRES ETRAER G

BRWARHRE -
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee
in accordance with the requirements of the Listing
Rules and the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules. The primary duty of Audit Committee is to
review and supervise the financial reporting process
and internal control systems of the Group. The audit
committee comprised 4 members: 3 independent
non-executive directors and 1 executive director.
The audit committee has reviewed the audited
financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2012.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s Corporate Governance Report is set
out on pages 14 to 25.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general
meeting to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

KWONG JIMMY CHEUNG TIM
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 15 May 2012

EREES

AREIERB EMARREMEE 141
TrEEBFTRTANIBZEES -
BENZESTERERTENEEY
BERBENEENIPEZRS -
EnEZEem4GKEHAK 3BT
HATEER1BATES - ERZ
B2 EHAEEREE2012F3 A
31 A2 BBZ MK -

ARARZEEERBREHNF14EE
25/ °

23 4]
RARRIRRBAFRNE LB RERE
ROBEERY - @ER IR
RR B ZAZEED -

EEZEH
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TEREETTHAZ

& 20125151
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZEARE

Deloitte.
=)

TO THE MEMBERS OF EASYKNIT ENTERPRISES HOLDINGS LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Easyknit
Enterprises Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 40 to 134,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 March 2012, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance

with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong

BAEEXEMARQFAZERR
(RAREZMKIZBERLE)

AZEEMATEBIHM) EBEZINHANRE0E
14 EKBREXEEERAR(ERA) RENE
ARG EEE]DOGEUBRE - BEHVBR
REER2012F3 A BZRAMKHRRE - &
BEZOALFEZHEA2EKER  Rogsg

KNGABERER  UREARSHBEEBENRH
ffRIEER -

ESNGAMBRRAREZRR

BERAEFARERBERQHMAGRMZEE
MBRERARBRELAGRIZREERHEER
MAFZERMBHRE  EERIERESRR/ME
ZNEEER - MEMRELZ A MBRR RS
RERFE kIR AR T BB 2 BAH R -

BEMzEE

M2 EERRERMACERHZSHRAMBTRE
EHER  TRRAFERREFOGERNEE
BERMEH S - BRULIASN - ARERIEE M B
BT ERAREATRETAEMALE EF0RE
EREME - RUICRBEZLGTMRERMLEE
B EAETERTE GLRRERAMETE
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BB S w)

Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated

financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the

consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2012,
and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong

15 May 2012

ERE - WRERMTER  NAERELFES
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

mEEZEBER

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BZ2012F3 31 HIEEE

Continuing operations:
Turnover

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Other gains and losses

Other expenses

Distribution and selling expenses

Administrative expenses

Gain arising on changes in fair value
of investment properties

(Loss) gain on investments held for
trading

Gain (loss) on fair value change of
financial assets designated as at
fair value through profit or loss

Impairment loss recognised in respect
of goodwill

Impairment loss recognised in respect
of intangible asset

Reversal of impairment loss
recognised in respect of property,

plant and equipment

(Loss) profit before taxation

Taxation

(Loss) profit for the year from

continuing operations

Easyknit Enterprises Holdings Limited

RERER
E S
HEMA

£

HA
Hiodeas R EE
Hipfix

LSRN

TBHAX

REMEZ A FEED
Yok

REREREZ(BR)
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BAVEFABRRZ
TREEZRTEED
Yoz (B518)

HEZERARESR

BV AEZERARME
EE

WmE - BEERELZ
B R RERER
4

BR A0 (B 1R ) F
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REREREXRBZAFE
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Notes
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19

16
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2011
HK$’000
FAT

347,992
(309,487)
38,505
366

997
(1,147)
(6,912)
(29,176)

37,374

1,705

(673)

8,777

49,816
(4,939)

44,877



Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income (continued)

mEzEWRER @@
For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE2012F3H31 HILFE
2011
Notes HK$’000
Kzt FET
Discontinued operations: B IEE ST
Profit for the year from discontinued ~ REBRILELER 2 AFE
operations Y Al 13 20,183
(Loss) profit for the year, attributable KRR RIEZZE ABIGAEE
to owners of the Company (B18) & 65,060
Other comprehensive income Hith 2 mEIRA
Exchange differences arising on BmEBNEECER
translation of foreign operations Fat 9,511
Total comprehensive (expense) RARIEREE AEN
income for the year, attributable to AEEEE(FY)
owners of the Company LNt 74,571
Basic (loss) earnings per share BREAR(EE)2H 14
From continuing and discontinued REFELER
operations ERIEER HK$0.152
From continuing operations REFELEED HK$0.105

KEREBEXEEAERAT 2011/2012 4#H
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RE M EIR R
At 31 March 2012
R2012%3431H

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties
Deposits paid for acquisition of an
investment property
Goodwill

Intangible asset

Current assets
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Investments held for trading
Financial assets designated as at
fair value through profit or loss

Bank balances and cash

Assets classified as held for sale

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Bills payable
Tax payable

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

FRBEE

WE - BERR

BEME

BAREMERZEH
B

HE

BVEE

MBEE

(E3

B 5 KA RUIR
REEERE
BAVEFARRZ
TREE
RITEHEAE

SIERHEHMEBE

mBRE
B9 REAMENTR
BANRE
FERI R

mBEEFE

BEGERADERE

Notes
iz

16
17

18
19

20
21
22

23
24
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2011
HK$’000
FAT

9,786
300,597

39,313
21,614

371,310

6,155

64,625

58,485

19,327
181,876

330,468
227

330,695

36,129

13,758

49,887

280,808

652,118



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continueq)

e MBARRE @)

At 31 March 2012
R2012%3A31H

2011
Notes HK$’000
K FET

Non-current liabilities FERBEE
Deferred tax liabilities FREHBERE 27 23,756
628,362

Capital and reserves AR
Share capital [N 28 5,507
Reserves G 622,855
628,362

The consolidated financial statements on pages 40 to 134 were

approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 15

May 2012 and are signed on its behalf by:

Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim

BRA
DIRECTOR
EF

EEEN2012F5 415 Bt ERIFREBERFEI0E
134 B2 R AMKRE YR THIESRRES

Lui Yuk Chu
RS
DIRECTOR
BEF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

mEEDEER

For the year ended 31 March 2012

BE2012F3 /31 HILFE
Property Accumulated
Share Share Capital Contributed  Exchange revaluation (losses)
capital premium reserve surplus reserve reserve profits Total
)
k& RHEE  RERE  BABR  EXRE  EHER &l ag
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
AT AT AT AT AT AT AT AT
At 1 April 2010 R201064A1H 3,671 107,900 53,194 299,722 21,178 40,624 (36,306) 489,983
Exchange differences arising /55 2 E2
on translation of foreign EiZR
operations - - - - 9,511 - - 9,511
Profit for the year RER R = - - - - - 65,060 65,060
Total comprehensive income for AEE2ENAER
the year - - - - 9,511 - 65,060 74,571
Rights issue of shares iR
(see note 28(a)) (Zhi283)) 1,836 62,411 - - - - = 64,247
Transaction costs attributable %/ 2% 5
to issue of new shares i - (439) - - - - - (439)
At 31 March 2011 R201153A31H 5,507 169,872 53,194 299,722 30,689 40,624 28,754 628,362
Exchange differences arising /85282
on translation of foreign EizE
operations - - - - 9,132 - - 9,132
Loss for the year rEEER - - - - - - (42730 (42,730)
Total comprehensive income ~ AEE2ERA(FR)
(expense) for the year &% = = - - 9,132 - (42,730) (33,598)
At 31 March 2012 R201243 A31H 5,507 169,872 53,19 299,722 39,821 40,624 (13,976) 594,764

The capital reserve of the Group represents the credit arising from
the reduction of share capital of the Company in March 2004 and
September 2005 and can be applied in the future for distribution to
the shareholders.

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the credit arising
from the reduction of share capital of the Company in February
2003 and October 2009, part of which was applied to set off against
accumulated losses of the Company in October 2009. The balance
may be utilised by the directors in accordance with the Company’s
Bye-laws and all applicable laws, including to eliminate the
accumulated losses of the Company.

The property revaluation reserve of the Group represents the gain
on revaluation of certain leasehold properties and prepaid lease
payments of the Group when these leasehold properties and prepaid
lease payments were transferred to investment properties.

REBZBRAFBERRADTN2004F3 A &
20059 A AR ANFTE £ < #K - Al i8R
D& TR o

REBZHABBREANDAFR2003F2 A K&
2009 F 10 RHI B ARFEEER  F2HAR
FER2009F 10 A BERKEA QR 2 R5TE1E
EEMREBEAQRZERZMEIREAEEB AR F A
FRZES  RIEANKEAARZ BETEE -

AEBZMEERRERRASEBREENER
BNEETEEREAMERERETHRAMERE
NHEEFR W -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
FERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2012

BE2012F3H31 HILFE
Operating activities RER
(Loss) profit for the year REE(B1R)RH
Adjustments for: BB IEFE
Taxation recognised in profit or loss ERERBERZHIE
Interest income FEBA
Depreciation e
Amortisation of intangible asset B AR
Unrealised loss (gain) on fair value RIEEEREZATE
changes of investments held for 2P ARERERE
trading (fa)

Dividend income from listed investments ERHREZREBA
Reversal of impairment loss recognised ME - BERERZ
in respect of property, plant and BRERREBE

equipment [

Impairment loss recognised in respect of e EERAE
goodwill i

Impairment loss recognised in respect of BREEZERARME
intangible asset BB

Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE  BERZEL
equipment g

Loss (gain) on fair value change of BATEFAER 2 H
other financial assets at fair value CHEEZATEE
through profit or loss B8 ()

Gain on disposal of assets classified as HEIERIELERE
held for sale Pl

Gain arising on changes in fair value of BREMFE I R FEEZE)
investment properties Wiz

Operating cash flows before movements in ~ Kzt&EE S EHH 2 L%
9

working capital Heng
Decrease (increase) in inventories FER D (EM)
Decrease (increase) in trade and other B 5 Rk E b U IR R A
receivables ($&m)
Decrease in bills receivable [EWEE R >
Increase in investments held for trading HEBERBIENM
(Decrease) increase in trade and other B o5 REMENFECORD)
payables N
Increase in bills payable FE TSR IBE N
Cash from (used in) operations RE(AR)BEZRE
Dividend received from investments held BIEEEREZEWR
for trading V=)
Income tax paid B FEH

Net cash from (used in) operating activities 28 (R QL ¥ 2 R4 F5E

KEREBEXEEAERAT 2011/2012 4#H

2011
HK$’000
FET
65,060
11,638
(252)

615
3,126

(1,705)
(153)

(8,777)

673
(18,592)
(37,374)
14,262
(5,880)
(41,708)
26,266

(52,825)

4,734

(55,151)

153
(151)

(55,149)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

mEBRERER @

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BZ2012F3 31 HIEEE

Investing activities

Proceeds from redemption of financial
assets designated as at fair value
through profit or loss

Settlement of receivable/proceeds from
disposal of assets classified as held for
sale

Interest received

Purchase of financial assets designated as
at fair value through profit or loss

Deposits paid for acquisition of an
investment property

Addition of investment properties

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Refund of deposit in respect of
construction of property, plant and
equipment

Deposits received for disposal of assets
classified as held for sale

Net cash from investing activities

Financing activities
Proceeds from rights issue of shares
Transaction costs attributable to rights

issue of shares
Net cash from financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
the year

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the
year, represented by bank balances

and cash

REED
B A FERARRZ
TREELE
I
HEFIERELERE
Z W B, s
A
EWFE
BARAFER ARS
ZEREE
BAREYRZEN
Be
REREME
BADE - BB R&
BRERME BER
R EE
RE
HEINEREHEEE
PASY €76

RERBERS RS FE
BEED
BITHBR D 2 FIE50R
BITHBR 2
RAHA
REBELRB RS FE

R RERRE 2 MFER
FNZREREFRAE

NEEXRH? HE
FEIREREARS

BRITEHR
R
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2011
HK$000
FAT

44,673
252

(20,000)

(961)

(59)

17,967

950

42,822

64,247

(439)

63,808

51,481

127,912
2,483

181,876



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B A RRMTEE

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BZE2012E3 31 HILFE

1.

GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
During the year ended 31 March 2012, Easyknit International
Holdings Limited (“Easyknit International”), which is incorporated
in Bermuda, acquired additional equity interest of the Company
and became the parent and also ultimate holding company
of the Company. The addresses of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in the

“Corporate Information” section of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$” or “HKD”) which is also the functional

currency of the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 33.

—REHN

ARRRBREIMKLAZHEZERE
ERA EROREBHERIMERRAA
(MBFr]) ETH - BE2012F 3 A31 BLEF
N REREFRRIAKEZREEREGR
NRNTREERR ) - WEADAEIMER T
RARRRZB AR RREERAR - AA
AZAMPERMIEREELEDE  ER
AERIARER | —HNBEE

A MK ®KRNB T I ETHKS] %
[HKD]) - BARE 2 L E¥HER -

AABAREERLNT - T EHBAF 2
EEEBHIIAMITESS

AEEXEEAERLT 2011/2012 4F#H;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BZE2012F3 31 HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred as the “Group”) have applied the following
new and revised HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).

Amendments to HKFRSs Improvements to HKFRSs issued in
2010

HKAS 24 (as revised in 2009)  Related party disclosures

Amendment to HK(IFRIC*)
— INT 14
HK(IFRIC)— INT 19

Prepayments of a minimum funding
requirement

Extinguishing financial liabilities with
equity instruments

*

IFRIC represents the IFRS Interpretations Committee.

The application of the above new or revised HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material effect on the amounts reported
in these consolidated financial statements and/or disclosures

set out in these consolidated financial statements.

The Group has not early applied the following new or revised

HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Transfers of financial
assets'

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Offsetting financial
assets and financial liabilities’

Amendments to HKFRS 7

2. ERMEREET2EBUE

RER(ERMBHREE
8l1)

RAREE  ARAREMBERR(GREAS
BCEREEAMAS([FESHMA
BB ZATHEREET 2 BEBUBER
LR o

AN

BEUBREER (BTA) 20105 b 2 BAHH
BEEA 28
BAGHEAF AT BEATBE
(A2009F & (55T)
Fh(ERNBRERRERS) BASEEEHE
- REE1B(ETR)

AE(ERMBEERRRZEe) NRAIAKHERAR
- 2EF19%

* ERMBHREREZReRRBRYBRE
RAFEERAN EHERBEIT 2 BAMS

REENBGAMBRAMERIEER
IEAMBBREMBLBBLBEATE -

it

o

AEELARRFEB TS B/MERKRER
ZHIBREERT 2 BRI BRELER -

BAUBREENETR(BTA) BE - cREEES'

BAMBHREEARTR(BIA) KE - 2REERSH

Mandatory effective date of HKFRS 9

and HKFRS 9 and transition disclosures®
HKFRS 9 Financial instruments®
HKFRS 10 Consolidated financial statements®
HKFRS 11 Joint arrangements’

AEER'
BRHBREEAETHR BEUBREENE IR
BRMBREEAF IR ZBHEERASR
(fg577%) BEERE®
BRMBREEAE IR SHIAC
BRMBRSENF 105 FaiBRE'
BRMBRSENE 1S *RRH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B RRME @

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BIZE2012F3 31 HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 12

HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011)

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011)

HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011)

Amendments to HKAS 32

HK(IFRIC) — INT 20

Disclosures of interests in other
entities’

Fair value measurements’
Presentation of financial statements
— Presentation of items of other

comprehensive income®
Deferred tax: Recovery of underlying
assets’

Employee benefits*

Separate financial statements"*

Investments in associates and joint
ventures

Offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities®

Stripping costs in the production phase

of a surface mine*

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015.

2. EREMREETNEBM

BHREE(FEMBREE

Bl ]) )
EAURRLRNE 103

BRMBREENE 135
R E R CHE)

BAGENZ 125 (BHTE)

BEQHEAE195%
(R 2011 EBE3T)
BheENZ TR
(R2011 54 3T)
BRGITERZ 285
(R2011 E8E3T)
BAQIIERE 2% (B3T8)

EA(AREBREREZES)
- REE20%

EpERER BE

ATEHE’

HER= -
Htt2EUARR 2
25°

EITHE : REEER
BE

E&EA

BUBBRE'

SRAERSRABER’

EXBAEER AR
RA

! R2011E7 A1 Bk 2 BBz FEHRAE

o

2 R2012F1 A1 Bz Ria 2 FEHME

o

¢ R2012%7 A1 Bk 2 % FRth 2 FE R AE

e

 R2013F1 A1 Bz BRI FEREL

2 o

° R2014F1 A1 Bz FRia 2 FEHME

% o

® R2015F1 A1 Bz Bz FEBRRAE

A e

AEEXEEAERLT 2011/2012 4F#H;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BZE2012F3 31 HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments”

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9
amended in 2010 includes the requirements for the classification

and measurement of financial liabilities and for derecognition.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

e HKFRS 9 requires all recognised financial assets that
are within the scope of HKAS 39 “Financial instruments:
Recognition and measurement” to be subsequently
measured at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically,
debt investments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows,
and that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost at
the end of subsequent accounting periods. All other debt
investments and equity investments are measured at their
fair values at the end of subsequent reporting periods. In
addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair value
of an equity investment (that is not held for trading) in
other comprehensive income, with only dividend income

generally recognised in profit or loss.

2. ERHBREBIT2BEBUE

REEA(BFEMBREE
Bl ) )

BERPBBEEANFEIOR N SRMTAE ]

722009 F 3 5 2 & 78 B 15 ¥R 45 22 B 8 9 5% 5
AeREEDBENRGTEZHATE - N20105F
REIZEBNBREENFEIROEER
BEZABRTENRIVERRZHATE

BRI B RELERNE N 2 F E 48 TE 5 4
N

s ARUBBRESENFIFHATEELS
ATERIFEIRI B T A - BR MEt
EIHEANZEERACRHEELRR
BHRLBHK A AT EE - ARBM
5 BANMAKKANREREZEBRE
ANFEE URAHNHEREERE
BAERHAEEREMEENEZE
BRE  —RREEST MR RIZEH
ARG E - AR EHRE RRAK
BOREREBAREAVEE - %
h'@fﬁ/ﬁﬁiﬁﬁJ%Qﬁ '

AR AR EE B AR E 2 U
Afﬂk$&éﬂm#ﬁ¢EfUZEé
NHEEY - I —RERBRNER

BIRA -

50 Easyknit Enterprises Holdings Limited 2011/2012 Annual Report



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B RRME @

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BIZE2012F3 31 HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (continued)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

(continued)

e The most significant effect of HKFRS 9 regarding the
classification and measurement of financial liabilities
relates to the presentation of changes in the fair value of a
financial liability (designated as at fair value through profit
or loss) attributable to changes in the credit risk of that
liability. Specifically, under HKFRS 9, for financial liabilities
that are designated as at fair value through profit or loss,
the amount of change in the fair value of the financial
liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of
that liability is presented in other comprehensive income,
unless the recognition of the effects of changes in the
liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income would
create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss.
Changes in fair value attributable to a financial liability’s
credit risk are not subsequently reclassified to profit or
loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire amount of the change in
the fair value of the financial liability designated as at fair

value through profit or loss is presented in profit or loss.

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures

In June 2011, a package of five standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures was issued, including
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11, HKFRS 12, HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011)
and HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011).

2. BRAFMEREBII2EBUE

REEA(BEMBREE
Bl ) )

ERUBRELENFEIORIEMTA (@)

BERMBRELNFEIR 2T BRE 54
T (#&)

s HMERMAGBIABNMGEMS BAY
BHRELNEINKREAZENERASE
BRABECERREDREZABOEE
REATESGARR) A FEEH 2
I e LEE - REBEMBHREE
BIF o5 - BIEEREAFEN ARSE
ZEBBEMNS  ZABEERRE
EBhceMARRATELZSSENEMD
EHRAZT - BRIEREMEEKRARE
RABCEERREDTESEHIE
ARBEHEZEHER - SRABREER
RREEZATEESERTEEHN I
84 - REBEGHEAF 9% - 15
ERBAFEFABGEZEBAERTF
EEH2HLENRELT -

Re HERHE BEQARKEZHK
BRI ER

R2011F6 A AEA#MES - LARH -
BERNRRBRREZERERG  REREY
BWELRE105 - FEFBRELRNE 11
W BANMBREENE 12 EEGHE
A 275k (2011 FABE ) RBEB &
BI%5 28 5% (74 2011 4 {EFT) o

AEEXEEAERLT 2011/2012 4F#H;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BZE2012F3 31 HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. ERMERKEII2ERBUS

52

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures (continued)

Key requirements of these five standards are described below.

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 “Consolidated and
separate financial statements” that deal with consolidated
financial statements and HK(SIC) — INT 12 “Consolidation —
Special purpose entities”. HKFRS 10 includes a new definition of
control that contains three elements: (a) power over an investee,
(b) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee, and (c) the ability to use its power over the
investee to affect the amount of the investor’s returns. Extensive
guidance has been added in HKFRS 10 to deal with complex

scenarios.

REEA(BFEMBREE
Bl ) )

Re HERHE BELARKEZHK
BREBTEAE)

ZABRENZ ERREFLMT o

BERAMBREERNFIORBRARESGS Y
BHRERZBOBEGHEE27TRFE
BUNBHRILER(RHEREZEE) -
REF 12558 — BRENEE|-FA
HHREENFE10RABEF TR €
B-BELE: @8HRENZEN: )2
BEREN 2 EBHEREE %R mnE
o ROHBREESERERNTERES
e - RV BMELRFE 105
BHEMSIRIE S| AR IBERIEN -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B RRME @

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BIZE2012F3 31 HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. ERFHERKEBITIZEBIE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures (continued)

HKFRS 12 is a disclosure standard and is applicable to
entities that have interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements,
associates and/or unconsolidated structured entities. In general,
the disclosure requirements in HKFRS 12 are more extensive

than those in the current standards.

These five standards are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2013. Earlier application is permitted
provided that all of these five standards are applied early at the

same time.

The directors of the Company anticipate that these five
standards will be adopted in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the annual period beginning 1 April 2013 and
the application of these five standards may have no significant
impact on the results and financial position of the Group.
However, the application of HKFRS 12 may result in more

extensive disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

REEA(BEMBREE
Bl ) )

Re HERHE BEQARKEZHK
BREBTEAE)

BEMBRERANE 12K A —ARELEL
BERNENBAR - KREZH - BERAR
SRAGAEEERE AR 2 BE - B8
ME BEMBREENE12RHAE 2 KE
REBRTEAFAREEEREZME °

D

ZHEERR2013F1 A1 Bz BRiEZ
FEBEEN  WrAREER  ERIEEL
BRI IREERA o

RABIEZEH  BR2013F4818 2%
Mtz FESMERZAEENRNAEER 2
BRAVBREAMERZAEENBTISHA

SEZRERMBHRREEATE  BER
BEMBREENE12R AL EHARELR

AMBBRRCEEEAZA

AEEXEEAERLT 2011/2012 4F#H;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BZE2012F3 31 HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. ERMERKEII2ERBUS

54

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKFRS 13 “Fair value measurement”

HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for fair value
measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements.
This standard defines fair value, establishes a framework for
measuring fair value, and requires disclosures about fair value
measurements. The scope of HKFRS 13 is broad; it applies to
both financial instrument items and non-financial instrument
items for which other HKFRSs require or permit fair value
measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements,
except in specified circumstances. In general, the disclosure
requirements in HKFRS 13 are more extensive than those in
the current standards. For example, quantitative and qualitative
disclosures based on the three-level fair value hierarchy
currently required for financial instruments only under HKFRS 7
“Financial instruments: Disclosures” will be extended by HKFRS

13 to cover all assets and liabilities within its scope.

HKFRS 13 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2013, with earlier application permitted.

The directors of the Company anticipate that HKFRS 13 will be
adopted in the Group’s consolidated financial statements for
the annual period beginning 1 April 2013 and may affect the
amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements and
result in more extensive disclosures in the consolidated financial

statements.

REEA(BFEMBREE
Bl ) )

ERUBRMELNE 13K A VEFE]

ERVMBREENE13RELEHR T ER
ERBELAVEAEEHN ZE—HEI KR -
ZRERAERFE BUFERAFEIER
REBLVEFEZRERTE - BEMBR
HRAE1BHRHBERE  ERAREMEE
HBEREENREIAFATFEHERKE
AVFEEENZEBRTABEARFERT
ARA - EBERRERN - BBME - BA
HBHRELENF 1R RERERRT
RAUAZREEREA - fln - BRERRE
AMBREEMNETRIEMITE : KE I
BEMTAZ=ERAFESFSRIELRTEM
REEMBEETEMBRMEERFE 13 MNA
BR NAEESKENZMAEERAR

ERYVEREERE135ER2013F1 A1H
A B FIAZ FEE R AN - YRR PR °

ARAIESEE  #R2013F4 18 2%
iz FEEREREBHMBRELEAE 13
FRARB 2GRN BRERAIETERGS
MBEBRENMERZ CBEREFAEELRE
M HREk s BRBEERZH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B RRME @

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BIZE2012F3 31 HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. ERFHERKEBITIZEBIE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 “Presentation of items of
other comprehensive income”

The amendments to HKAS 1 retain the option to present profit
or loss and other comprehensive income in either a single
statement or in two separate but consecutive statements.
However, the amendments to HKAS 1 require additional
disclosures to be made in the other comprehensive income
section such that items of other comprehensive income
are grouped into two categories: (a) items that will not be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss; and (b) items that
may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when specific
conditions are met. Income tax on items of other comprehensive

income is required to be allocated on the same basis.

The amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2012. The presentation of items of
other comprehensive income will be modified accordingly when

the amendments are applied in the future accounting periods.

Amendments to HKAS 12 “Deferred tax — Recovery of
underlying assets”

The amendments to HKAS 12 provide an exception to the
general principles in HKAS 12 that the measurement of deferred
tax assets and deferred tax liabilities should reflect the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the entity expects to recover the carrying amount of an asset.
Specifically, under the amendments, investment properties that
are measured using the fair value model in accordance with
HKAS 40 “Investment property” are presumed to be recovered
through sale for the purposes of measuring deferred taxes,

unless the presumption is rebutted in certain circumstances.

REEA(BEMBREE
Bl ) )

BEREEAS1R(BIA)NEA2E
WAERE 225 ]

%%@ﬁﬁW%1%Z1J$1 A AE —H
RAMNBUEERRR2I B R EMLR
HWAZERE - AT BEGEREA
R AR EARE M2 E KA ES
%%ﬁ%’%@ﬂﬁ@i@WAﬁﬁJ“ﬁ
MR (ERTEEM D EERREZER

R (b) NERRE (RIFE - RRAIEHIEE
Ba@zAe - Hth2ERARBNHAEHA
RIEREET AN -

BRGERF1RZBIARTIR2012F7
A1RS ARG 2 FRBELER - BEF]
ARARR G HEEAE - EM2EBAE
BZE2 A AR eEHREE

BEREENE12F(BITR)ELED
B - BEHBEE]

BEAGHEUNE12R 2B ARE R G E
W%12%2f%xﬁmmﬂ ENP RN
BERERERECHERBERERRER
%#TW@éFM%EEZ&%WE A8
M5 KBBTA  ZRBREBLFEE 40
WIREMEIRAATEEAGENREY
¥ EHE Lmﬁ% DRZEREET
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BZE2012F3 31 HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. ERMERKEII2ERBUS

56

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12 “Deferred tax — Recovery of
underlying assets” (continued)

The amendments to HKAS 12 are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2012. The directors of the
Company anticipate that the application of the amendments to
HKAS 12 in future accounting periods may result in adjustments
to the amounts of deferred tax liabilities recognised in prior
years regarding the Group’s investment properties. The directors
of the Company are in the process of assessing the impact on
application of these amendments to HKAS 12 and the directors
of the Company anticipate that these amendments will have an

impact on deferred tax liabilities of the Group.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of the other new and revised standards, amendments or
interpretations will have no material impact on the results and

the financial position of the Group.
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for investment properties and
certain financial instruments, which are measured at fair values,

as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and

by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B RRME @

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BIZE2012F3 31 HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the
Company has the power to govern the financial and operating

policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the effective date of acquisition or

up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into

line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are

eliminated on consolidation.

3.
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Intangible assets acquired in a business combination REBSHPUBETEE

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are ENAEVEEFE NEATFER Al EMET
identified and recognised separately from goodwill where they SR REXESHPWEZEFREERFE
satisfy the definition of an intangible asset and their fair values DB RER c BEEE KA T H U
can be measured reliably. The cost of such intangible assets is BEz ATE -

their fair value at the acquisition date.
Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with finite
useful lives are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is provided on a straight-

line basis over their estimated useful lives.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012

BE20123 831 HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TESHEER@®
(continued)
Goodwill e

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any, and is
presented separately in the consolidated statement of financial

position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the relevant cash-generating units (or groups of cash-
generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies

of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment annually or more frequently whenever
there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill
arising on an acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-
generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment before the end of that reporting period. If the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the
carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata on
the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or
loss in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in

subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable
amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the

amount of profit or loss on disposal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B RRME @

For the year ended 31 March 2012

BE20123H31 HILFEE
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TESHEER@®
(continued)

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets or disposal groups are classified as held
for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use.
This condition is regarded as met only when the sale is highly
probable and the non-current asset is available for immediate
sale in its present condition. Management must be committed to
the sale, which should be expected to qualify for recognition as

a completed sale within one year from the date of classification.

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) classified as held for
sale are measured at the lower of their previous carrying amount

and fair value less costs to sell.

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group, which
comprises operations and cash flows that can be clearly
distinguished, operationally and for financial reporting purposes
from the rest of the Group, and has been disposed of, or is
classified as held for sale, and either (a) represents a separate
major line of business or geographical area of operations, (b) is
part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major
line of business or geographical area of operations or (c) is a

subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold and services provided in the normal course of

business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012

60

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods
are delivered and titles have passed, at which time all the

following conditions are satisfied:

e  the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks
and rewards of ownership of the goods;

e the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement
to the degree usually associated with ownership nor
effective control over the goods sold;

e the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

o it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the transaction will flow to the Group; and

e the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the

transaction can be measured reliably.

Service income is recognised when services are rendered.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it
is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest
income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which
is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that

asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established
(provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the amount of revenue can be measured

reliably).

BE20123 31 HILFEE
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TESHEER@®
(continued)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B RRME @

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BZE2012E3 31 HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TESHEER@®

(continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment (other than construction in
progress) are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and

accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment other than construction in
progress less their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of the reporting period, with the effect of any changes in

estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Construction in progress includes property, plant and equipment
in the course of construction for production or for its own
use purposes. Construction in progress is carried at cost
less recognised impairment loss. Construction in progress
is classified to the appropriate category of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for intended use.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other
property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their

intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is

recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012

62

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or

for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure, except for the properties
transferred from property, plant and equipment, which are
measured at fair value at the date of transfer. Subsequent to
initial recognition, investment properties are measured at their
fair values using the fair value model. Gains or losses arising
from changes in the fair value of investment property are

included in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and
no future economic benefits are expected from its disposals.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss

in the period in which the item is derecognised.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable

value. Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out method.

BE20123 31 HILFEE
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TESHEER@®
(continued)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B RRME @

For the year ended 31 March 2012

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity

becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit

or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into two categories
including financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL”) and loans and receivables. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets
and is determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation

or convention in the marketplace.

BE20123 831 HILFE
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TESHEER@®
(continued)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BZE2012F3 31 HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount

on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments other than those financial assets classified as
at FVTPL, of which interest income is included in net gains or

losses.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL has two subcategories, including
financial assets held for trading and those designated as at

FVTPL on initial recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the near future; or

o it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial instruments
that the Group manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a

hedging instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B RRME @

For the year ended 31 March 2012

BE2012F3 /31 HILFE
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEEHER@®

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued) SWMIBE)

Financial assets (continued) THEE(E)

Financial assets at FVTPL (continued) BN FEFAEDZ THEEE)

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading KREFEESREEN  ETIBERT &

may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if: BEEANIAERENTEAEATERA

Ba eREE

e such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a o  ZATERNERR AR DT = S R
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would AREEZDI - %
otherwise arise; or

e the financial asset forms part of a group of financial o FHEREEA HELREAERLRAE
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed B MER Z— % fn HEBEERRZ
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in AEBINARATEEEERBRASERE 2
accordance with the Group’s documented risk management Efe TR iR E R U RIRBASE
or investment strategy, and information about the grouping BzBEREE &R %
is provided internally on that basis; or

e it forms part of a contract containing one or more o HHEE MBS EHLZERNET
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire £TH: L‘A&?%%;’é%ﬁ#ﬂﬂ%wﬁ)ﬁ
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Financial assets at FVTPL, including equity linked investments, BRERAHAKRE EATEFAEEZ LS

are measured at fair value, with changes in fair value arising MEEHVIRATENE  EHAE5IBZA

from re-measurement recognised directly in profit or loss in the 32{52 N EEE R EEN B AR

period in which they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in RERERZWENBIEFET2ER

profit and loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on the imﬁé?%ﬁ?z&ﬁﬂﬁ BAIE

financial assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BZE2012F3 31 HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including trade and other receivables, and bank balances and
cash) are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment losses (see accounting

policy on impairment of financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than financial assets at FVTPL, are
assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of the reporting
period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired where
there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial
asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets

have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

e  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

. breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B RRME @

For the year ended 31 March 2012

BIZE2012F3 31 HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TEETHBE@®
(continued)
Financial instruments (continued) S$RTHEE)
Financial assets (continued) THEE(E)
Impairment of financial assets (continued) THEEREE)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss is recognised as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original

effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of trade receivables and other receivables
is reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes
in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised
in profit or loss. Objective evidence of impairment for trade and
other receivables could include the Group’s past experience
of collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the trade and other receivables past the average
credit period of 90 days, observable changes in national or
local economic conditions that correlate with default in the
receivables. When trade and other receivables are considered
uncollectible, they are written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are

credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit
or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at
the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been

recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an

equity instrument.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the

proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the

net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables, and bills

payable are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the

effective interest method.

BE20123 831 HILFE
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TESHEER@®
(continued)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

mEe

B RS SR R M =E )

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BIZE2012F3 31 HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the

risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive

income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognise financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is

recognised in profit or loss.
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Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill (see the accounting policy in
respect of goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate
assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation

basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which

the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced
to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

BE20123 31 HILFEE
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TESHEER@®
(continued)
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BE20123H31 HILFEE
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TESHEER@®
(continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill (see the accounting policy in
respect of goodwill above) (continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an

impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently

payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income because it excludes items
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted

by the end of the reporting period.
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Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that

affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are

expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available

to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of

the reporting period.

BE20123 31 HILFEE
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TESHEER@®
(continued)
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BE20123 531 HILFE
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEEHHX @
(continued)

Taxation (continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to

recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax is also recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as

operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or

loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. In the event that lease
incentives are received to enter into operating leases, such
incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit of
incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a

straight-line basis.
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Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates
of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a

foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the year in which they arise.
Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit or loss

for the period.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of the reporting period, and their income
and expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for
the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the
year, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any,
are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated

in equity under the heading of exchange reserve.

BE20123 831 HILFE
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TESHEER@®
(continued)
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BE20123 831 HILFE
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TESHEER@®
(continued)

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to the state-sponsored pension scheme operated
by the Mainland China (the “PRC”) government or the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered services entitling them

to the contribution.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may

differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future

periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets within the

next financial year.
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4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION 4. TREMFZEEZRF@

76

UNCERTAINTY (continued)
Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation
of the value in use of the cash-generating units to which
goodwill has been allocated. The value in use calculation
requires the Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to
arise from the cash-generating units and a suitable discount rate
in order to calculate the present value. Where the actual future
cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment loss
may arise. As at 31 March 2011, the gross carrying amount of
goodwill was HK$39,313,000, of which full amount of impairment
loss is recognised in profit and loss during the year ended 31
March 2012. Details of the recoverable amount calculation are

disclosed in note 18.
Estimated impairment of intangible asset

Determining whether intangible asset is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units to
which intangible asset has been allocated. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash flows
expected to arise from the cash-generating units and a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value. Where
the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a material
impairment loss may arise. As at 31 March 2011, the carrying
amount of intangible asset was HK$21,614,000, impairment loss
of HK$19,791,000 is recognised in profit and loss during the
year ended 31 March 2012. Details of the recoverable amount

calculation are disclosed in note 19.
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BIZE2012F3 31 HILFE

5. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5. EXEREE

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the cash and cash equivalent and equity balance. The

Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of cash and cash
equivalents, and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital and reserves. The Group did not

have borrowings for the years ended 31 March 2011 and 2012.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a
regular basis. As part of this review, the directors consider the
cost of capital and the risks associated with the capital. Based
on recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, new

share issues and raising of bank loans.
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BZE2012F3 31 HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

a.

6. €RI AR

Categories of financial instruments a. TSEMIAEZEH
2012 2011
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Financial assets CREE
Investments held for trading HIEEERE 58,987 58,485
Financial assets designated as at BAF B AER
FVTPL EREE - 19,327
Loans and receivables (including cash S M YR
and cash equivalents) (BfE Ei&%ﬁfﬁf\i)
— Trade and other receivables — B MEMEWFUA 19,818 43,198
— Bank balances and cash — SBITEHEIRE 205,477 181,876
284,282 302,886
Financial liabilities cREE
Amortised cost B AR
Trade and other payables B 5 N A FE R FRIE 7,971 20,434
Bills payable ENES 3,687 —
11,658 20,434
Financial risk management objectives and policies b. HREAKREEEEREE

The Group’s major financial instruments include

investments held for trading, equity linked investment,

trade and other receivables, bank balances and cash, trade

and other payables and bills payable. Details of these

financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The

risks associated with these financial instruments and the

policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.

The management manages and monitors these exposures

to ensure that appropriate measures are implemented on a

timely and effective manner.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. SRITE@

b. Financial risk management objectives and policies b. PXEMREERBERBEZ)
(continued)
Market risk mEE R
(i) Currency risk () EEELE

Certain subsidiaries of the Group have foreign
currency sales or purchases denominated in
currencies other than their functional currencies,
which expose the Group to foreign currency risk.
Approximately 98% (2011: 98%) of the Group’s
sales are denominated in currencies other than the

functional currency of the group entities making the

BERAEEETHBAR « BRIAE
BN - HERBEIEAINES
B BUEAREBEASZINERRE - 4
98% (20114 : 98% ) 2 AN &£ Bl 44
ERNEBEEB LR UINE
BIE ZETEACEREAIAE
EERINEERIE -

sale, whilst almost all purchases are denominated in

the group entities’ functional currency.

RBERR  UEEERZNESR
BN ZINEFIENEREERE

The carrying amount of the group entities’ foreign

currency denominated monetary assets and monetary

liabilities at the end of the reporting period is as BaE s REENAT
follows:
Liabilities Assets
afE BE
2012 2011 2012 2011
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
Renminbi (‘RMB?) AR - 1,109 171 10
HKD BT - = 28 28
United States dollars %7t
(“UsSD”) 85 114 55,350 35,355
Euro (“EUR?) BT - - 10,199 3
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BZE2012F3 31 HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Market risk (continued)

(i)

Currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to the currencies of
RMB, EUR and USD.

The following table details the group entities’
sensitivity to a 5% increase and decrease in functional
currency of the relevant group entities against the
relevant foreign currencies. 5% (2011: 5%) represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity
analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their
translation at the year end for a 5% change in foreign
currency rates. A positive number below indicates
a decrease in loss or an increase in profit where
functional currency of the relevant group entities
weaken 5% against the relevant foreign currency.
For a 5% strengthening of functional currency of the
relevant group entities against the relevant foreign
currency, there would be an equal and opposite
impact on the loss or profit, and the balances below

would be negative.

6. @I A

b.
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BE2012F3 /31 HILFE
6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. EMIEAm
b. Financial risk management objectives and policies b. PXEMREERBERBEZ)
(continued)
Market risk (continued) e A AC)
(i) Currency risk (continued) () EXEEE)
Sensitivity analysis (continued) BREDT(E)

RMB Impact HKD Impact USD Impact EUR Impact
NGt d Bz e ESA 7 Bnezd
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011

HKS'000  HKS'000 THKS'000  HKS'000 ~HKS'000 | HK$'000 ~HKS'000  HK$000
fEx | TEr | T 7ET | TEx | AT | FEE | TET

Decrease (increase)in  EERD (21)
loss (2011: Increase (20115 &7

(decrease) in profit) EmCED)) 9 (55) 1 1 2,763 1,762 510 =
The Group currently does not have a foreign currency 75 5= (B3 B N A M R B R AR
hedging policy to eliminate the currency exposures. BEEKRR BEEEESRREE
However, the management monitors the related HEzERRRREEBERFER
foreign currency exposure closely and will consider HEREERRETE I o

hedging significant foreign currency exposures should

the need arise.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is EEERR  BREAMAETRE
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange BEF 2 NE R E R - AFEERER
risk as the year end exposure does not reflect the TR FE N R

exposure during the year.
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BZE2012F3 31 HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Market risk (continued)

(i)

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through
its investments held for trading and financial assets
designated as at FVTPL. The management manages
this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of investments
with different risks. The Group’s equity price risk is
mainly concentrated on equity instruments quoted in
the Stock Exchange of issuers operating in banking
and finance industry sector. In addition, the Group
has appointed a special team to monitor the price risk
and will consider hedging the risk exposure should

the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risks at the

reporting date.

If the prices of the investments held for trading and
fair value of financial assets designated as at FVTPL
had been 5% (2011: 5%) higher/lower, post-tax loss
for the year ended 31 March 2012 would decrease/
increase by HK$2,462,000 (2011: increase/decrease
in post-tax profit by HK$3,248,000) as a result of the
changes in fair value of investments held for trading

and financial assets designated as at FVTPL.

6. @I A

b.

HBEAREZER/REERE)

e AC )

(i)

A ERER

BEAKERENFEEERER
BAVERABSZEREE ¥
EAREAXEFERRR - BE
BERFATRRRZEHFREE
BNEEZER - AEEZESE
BEREFRERM EHZRITR
TRITE - WO REBNTMBEAR
AEEEERERERKERER
FREEDZEAR

ATEBREDMRRBRBREHR
FiES 2B BERERETE -

MWEIEREE B E RIRAFERT
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5% (20114 : 5%) ' HIEEE
RERBRATFETABRZZ EAE
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BIZE2012F3 31 HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event
of the counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations as
at 31 March 2012 in relation to each class of recognised
financial assets is the carrying amount of those assets as
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position.
In view of the nature of business, the Group targets on
a focused market. As at 31 March 2012, the Group has
concentration of credit risk in the trade receivables balance
amounting to HK$14,391,000 (2011: HK$28,788,000)
derived from the five largest customers with good credit
history in garment industry. There is also concentration
risk in respect of the Group’s turnover during the year
ended 31 March 2012 amounting to HK$255,249,000 (2011:
HK$294,346,000) out of total turnover of HK$286,916,000
(2011: HK$347,992,000) was made to one single customer.
In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of
the Group has reviewed the financial position, liquidity and
recoverable amount of each individual trade receivable
regularly to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group’s credit

risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
majority of the counterparties are banks with high credit-
ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies and

banks with good reputation.

6. @I A

HHEAREZER/REERE)

EERE

W57 REBITIR2012F3A318F
AEREERSREECEL AIXE
BAAE 2 &G SRR AL E MBI
AR ZEEEREME - EH
HEmE  AEENEFTHEAEEEZ-
R201243A31H AEEHFRE R
AEPZEHREMRIAZLER 14,391,000
# 7t (20114 : 28,788,000/ L) 2 &
HEERRE - BEASEBE20124F
SABIBLERE 7 EXBENMAERBE
— &P Z %% R K 255,249,000 T
(20114 : 294,346,000 87T ) & %58 A
286,916,000 JT(2011 4 : 347,992,000
B c RREEERR  AEBZER
ETHEHEEE S EKRIE 2 BH
o RBESRATKESE - UERE
FABWE S EIEL B ARERE - 3t
WfE  AAREZRAAEEZEE
BB KR

RBEEZEERRAR  BXHEIR
57 RBRERERETARBIARER
ARZBIT  TRABREEEBZRT -

AEEXEEAERLT 2011/2012 4F#H;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BZE2012F3 31 HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations. The management monitors the utilisation of

borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

As at 31 March 2012, the Group has available
unutilised bank loan facilities of HK$60,000,000 (2011:
HK$50,000,000).

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. The table
has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which
the Group can be required to pay. The table includes both

interest and principal cash flows.

6. @I A

HBEAREZER/REERE)

HEEZEE

ARBECRREENS  AREZE
BEEENES—ERKFRARAZE
ERFRREARARE L EEMHMT -
EEENEEERE HALHREET
MBS RN -

R20123 A31H K&EBZXHH
1T E ZEEE 460,000,000 7% 7T (2011
£ : 50,000,000/57T) °

TRFAJAGEZERABIRBREH
BIEREARR o MR TR G B m] 4% 2 SR A

ReRPHHEAZERABRFARERSE
REIR  RABRMERAZRER

=
=
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

mE MR @)
For the year ended 31 March 2012
BZ2012F3 /31 HIEEE
6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continueq) 6. @I A
b. Financial risk management objectives and policies b. BMEEREEEERBEKE)
(continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) TREBELER(E)
Liquidity tables B EZ
Total
undiscounted
Effective Less than cash flows Carrying
interest rate 3 months AFEHRS amount
BRF= DR3EA RELE AR
% HK$000 HK$’000 HK$000
% FET FET FET
2012 20125
Non-derivative financial FTESRAR
liabilities
Trade and other payables 25 REMEMNFR
Bills payable ANE S
2011 2011
Non-derivative financial FHrEeRas
liabilities
Trade and other payables B 5 REM MR - 20,434 20,434 20,434

KEREBEXEEAERAT 2011/2012 4#H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BZE2012F3 31 HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

C.

Fair value

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities are

determined as follows:

e  The fair value of financial assets with standard terms
and conditions and traded on active liquid markets
are determined with reference to quoted market bid

prices.

e The fair value of financial assets designated as at
FVTPL are determined based on valuation provided
by the counterparty financial institutions for equivalent

instruments.

e  The fair value of other financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted cash
flow analysis using prices or rates from observable

current market transactions as input.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at
amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements

approximate to their fair values.

6. EMIEAm
AT

CHEERABEZATEZEENT

BREGR AR S EREE
ZRFHE2EMS LR HE
METE °

BRAFEFABRCEREERR
MRATAHEZ GBEBRE G
EMETE °

HipeREERERABZAYE
AR EEES 2 EBEN - 1R
BRUBRCRENS LR MR
ZERERBABZHRATTE
ATMETE

EZRR NEHEKAIIRGA MR
RZeBMEERSRABCRAERHE

REEEZ R FERD
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B RRME @

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BIZE2012F3 31 HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

c. Fair value (continued)

Fair value measurements recognised in the

consolidated statement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial

instruments that are measured subsequent to initial

recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 2 based

on the degree to which the fair value is observable.

° Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived

from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for

identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived
from inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived

from prices).

Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived
from valuation techniques that include inputs for the
asset or liability that are not based on observable

market data (unobservable inputs).

AEEXEEAERLT 2011/2012 4F#H;

6. EMIEAm

AVEE)
RELHBHRRERT S AFENE
TREHRIRERENEATESEY

SRITADN ERUBREIAFER
BoRF1IE2H -

F1RAFEFEDRABAEE
HBERNEEMSAHRERCR

F2MAFEFENHEEXAR
A ER(AERER)LEE (R
EBRITE)BR2BAB(E IR
ARBRERIN G -

FIRDFEFERGER
BREEXR B HAER RN
ABREZMSER(TABREHA
B)&
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BZE2012F3 31 HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. SRITE@

DVEE)

c. Fair value (continued) Cc.

REEMBRAXER2 A FlEHE

Fair value measurements recognised in the

88

consolidated statement of financial position (continued) (&)
Level 1 Level 2 Total
F1R F2M #HE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
2012 2012
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEGFAERZEHEE
Investments held for trading BIEEEKRE 58,987 - 58,987
2011 2011
Financial assets at FVTPL BOATEFAEBZZEHEE
Equity linked investments R EE R E = 19,327 19,327
Investments held for trading HFIEEERE 58,485 - 58,485
58,485 19,327 77,812

There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 in the

current and prior years.

F1RRFE2RBMALRBERAFE R
BEFEER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B RRME @

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BZE2012E3 31 HILFE

7. TURNOVER

Turnover represents the aggregate of the amounts received or
receivable for goods sold, net of discounts and sales related

taxes, and rental income received and receivable during the

B

H

EXRERFAARFTIRBAHEARR AR
ZEmEEZEWERKEERESRAZ
BEURERERE AEBREFELEED

year. An analysis of the Group’s turnover from its continuing LEETEDMT ¢
operations is as follows:
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET THT
Sales of goods EWHE 280,918 342,700
Rental income Hae kA 5,998 5,292
286,916 347,992
SEGMENT INFORMATION 8. 2 EER
Information reported to the Group’s chief executive officer, REBRNPREERBTMGMES @ 2ERAEANEE

being the chief operating decision maker, for the purposes of
resource allocation and assessment of segment performance
focuses on types of goods delivered or services provided. This
is also the basis of organisation, whereby the management has
chosen to organise the Group around differences in products

and services.

The Group’s operating and reportable segments from continuing
operations under HKFRS 8 are: (a) garment sourcing and
exporting, (b) property investment and (c) investment in

securities.

ZEIBRERREGRTHBRZEN  T5
ETRERRMAMBRB 2B - HITA
B ERE EEEEENMRARAEE
EmhREcER -

BREEEMBREEANESH  AEERE
REXBLRERERDHR - @QFRBRE
OKK - b)WERE R ) BHKE

AEEXEEAERLT 2011/2012 4F#H;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continueq)
e ERME )

For the year ended 31 March 2012

BZ201243H31 HILEE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. 7¥ER@®@

Segment revenue and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results

TRERERERA

BRARFERERBIRERERD BON

from its continuing operations by operating and reportable REB 7 EHEBREENT ¢
segment:

For the year ended 31 March 2012 BZ2012#3 531 HIEFE
Continuing operations: BFRELEEL

Turnover EER
External IR
Segment (loss) profit GECES
Other income HA
Other gain and losses Hit s R ER
Other expenses HiF%
Gain arising on changes in  RE&ME Y
fair value of investment ~ AF{EEE)
properties gz
Reversal of impairment mE - BER
loss recognised in FfE EHRR
respect of property, REBE
plant and equipment B[
Unallocated corporate E: SN A/N|
expenses H¥
Loss before taxation BB RIER

(continuing operations)

(FEREXE)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B RRME @

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BZE2012E3 31 HILFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

8. PEER M

Segment revenue and results (continued) PTHEEEERER(E)
For the year ended 31 March 2011 EiZ2011 3531 HILFE
Continuing operations: BEgEEK .
Garment
sourcing and
exporting Property  Investment in
RER investment securiies  Eliminations  Consolidated
H O K MERE BHERE i e
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FAT FET FAT
Turnover HERE
External IR 342,700 5,292 - - 347,992
Segment profit RS 3,115 2,450 1,165 = 6,730
Other income HElA 213
Other gain and losses Hi Wz REE 997
Other expenses Hifx (1,147)
Gain arising on changes in  REME 2
fair value of investment NFEEE
properties Wrzs 37,374
Reversal of impairment mE - BER
loss recognised in FEZERER
respect of property, REEE
plant and equipment &M 8,777
Unallocated corporate DR RF]
expenses 53 (3,128)
Profit before taxation B AR
(continuing operations) (BELZEE) 49,816

The accounting policies of the operating and reportable
segments are the same as the Group’s accounting policies
described in note 3. Segment profit (loss) represents the result
incurred by each segment without allocation of other income,
other gains and losses, other expenses, gain arising on changes
in fair value of investment properties, reversal of impairment
loss recognised in respect of property, plant and equipment and
unallocated corporate expenses. This is the measure reported to
the Group’s chief executive officer for the purposes of resource

allocation and performance assessment.

XEEXEEERAT 201

M3 - BERZ/D W2 G HBEK
HEAKE @ BRAR - 2BEEN(EHR)
DENHZRE  ERRBDEEMBA
Hitzm hEE - Etfx - REMEZA
FEES K  NE  BERREZCER
REBRERRENELRMY - ARAA
SEZERTRERER ERERAER
FRFEZ2ZE -

1/2012 £ 4t
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continueq)

e B IRERM T @)
For the year ended 31 March 2012
EFE201263H31 AILFEE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities

by operating and reportable segment:

8. 2EER M@

PHEEREE

Segment assets DPHEE

Garment sourcing and exporting RS R O
Property investment MERE

Investment in securities EHERE

Total segment assets DHEELE

Assets relating to discontinued operations 4 [FHRL ¥ 2 EE
Unallocated bank and cash balances BEORRTESHRRE
Others Hith

Consolidated assets REEAE

Segment liabilities AHEE

Garment sourcing and exporting RS R AR
Property investment MERE

Total segment liabilities HEEELEE
Unallocated EiaN

Consolidated liabilities HEEE

Easyknit Enterprises Holdings Limited 2011/2012 Annual Report

2011

HK$°000

TET

123,898
310,008
77,812

511,718

227

181,913

8,147

702,005

19,194

3,877

23,071
50,572

73,643



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B RRME @

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BZE2012E3 31 HILFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Segment assets and liabilities (continued)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and

allocating resources between segments:

— all assets are allocated to operating and reportable
segments other than unallocated bank and cash balances
and assets used jointly by operating and reportable

segments.

— all liabilities are allocated to operating and reportable
segments other than current and deferred tax liabilities and
liabilities for which operating and reportable segments are

jointly liable.

PEER @
PHREERBEE)

AN BRREZE RN HEZERDEM

= o
E

- BAOPERTERACHEBRERBLERER
NHMARERZEEI  MBEEEED

huf]

RELLRZHBNH -

- ﬁﬁmu@]& ERTEEEREERERD
LRBREZAEN  MBEABEDE

é%‘é ERDE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continueq)
HREMBERRM T @)

For the year ended 31 March 2012

BE20123A31 HILFE
8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. 2EER M@
Other segment information HthpEER
For the year ended 31 March 2012 BiF2012F3 531 HILEE
Continuing operations: FRESEER .
Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss or EESENENDERIDHLEEZETE

segment assets:

Capital additions BARRE
Amortisation 3
Depreciation il
Loss on investments held ~ HEEERE 2/
for trading #
Impairment loss recognised ~ F& 2 EH#R
in respect of goodwill REBR

Impairment loss recognised ~ EFEEZ
in respect of intangible BHRAE
asset B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B RRME @

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BZE2012E3 31 HILFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Other segment information (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2011

Continuing operations:

8. PEER M

Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss or

segment assets:

Capital additions
Amortisation
Depreciation

Gain on investments held

for trading

BEARRE

3

e

BIFEERA
2 Wgs

Garment

sourcing and

Httn BER(E)

BZ2011 #3531 HILEE

FEEERY

EEEEAENBBERLD

=111

PEECSH

exporting Property  Investment in
FER investment securities  Unallocated Total
p A MERE EHRE £ 3N B
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FETL FET FET FETL FETL
47 973 - - 1,020
3,126 - - - 3,126
485 15 - — 500
- - (1,705) - (1,705)

AEEXEEAERLT 2011/2012 4F#H;

95



96

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BZE2012E3H31 HILFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8.

Geographical information

The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong and the PRC.

The Group’s revenue from continuing operations from external
customers based on the location of customers and information
about its non-current assets by geographical location of the

assets are detailed below:

P EER @)

i35 7 8

AEEZ EBUREBRTE -

B AR EEELEB 2 REF RS

ZAKB L EXERBZEEZEREE D
ZHERBEEEHMT

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets
REPREFZEXR IRBEE

2012 2011 2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T FET T
Australia BN 1,126 6,345 - -
Europe BN 14,548 20,637 - -
Hong Kong B 2,988 3,344 197,215 196,590
PRC H 3,010 1,948 174,668 174,720
The United States of America =l 265,169 315,171 - —
Others Hitp 75 547 - -
286,916 347,992 371,883 371,310
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B RRME @

For the year ended 31 March 2012

BE2012F3 /31 HILFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. 7EER®
Information about major customers FEEFZER
Revenue from continuing operations from customers of the BRAEEHEEEE10% A EZRAFEL
corresponding years contributing over 10% of the total sales of BERTE YV REELSEBENT

the Group are as follows:

2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET &
Customer A' EFEA 255,249 294,346

! Revenue from garment sourcing and exporting. ! KEREREORK 2 S8 -

9. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 9. Hittlhm R &8

2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET &
Net exchange (loss) gain b 5 (518 ) e 4 (746) 997

AEEXEEAERLT 2011/2012 4F#H;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continueq)
e ERME )

For the year ended 31 March 2012

BZ201243H31 HILEE

10. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 10. EEREEZHE
EMOLUMENTS

(a) Information regarding directors’ emoluments (a) EFREEME2EN

Details of emoluments to the directors of the Company for HZE2012F3 A31HILFEARAE
the year ended 31 March 2012 are as follows: EMeENMT -

Fees ESHe
Other emoluments ~ HftE4
— Salaries and - HEREM
other benefits =]
— Contributions ~ — R4
to retirement HEIER
benefit

schemes

Total directors’ EZMen®

emoluments

Easyknit Enterprises Holdings Limited 2011/2012 Annual Report



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B RRME @

For the year ended 31 March 2012

BE2012F 3731 AILFE
10. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 10. EEREEZME @)
EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(a) Information regarding directors’ emoluments (a) EHREEME2ER(E)
(continued)
Details of emoluments to the directors of the Company for HE2011F3A3IALEEARARAE
the year ended 31 March 2011 are as follows: ES AT ¢
Kwong Tse
Jimmy Koon Wing

Cheung  LuiYuk  Ho Yan Chiu, KanKa LauSin Foo Tak
Tim Chu Candy Ricky Hon Ming Ching Total
BRA EF% BAM  #KkB  BEH  HEH  AER Rk
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T FET  TEr  FEr  TErT  TEr  FET  TExn

(Note)
/il53
Fees 208 — — — 100 100 100 100 400
Other emoluments A4
— Salaries and - e REM
other benefits il 840 1,461 272 - - = = 2,573
— Contributions — RINER
to retirement BE e
benefit
schemes - 12 11 - - - - 23
Total directors’ EZMeaE
emoluments 840 1,473 283 100 100 100 100 2,996
Note: Appointed on 5 May 2010. HiaF - R2010F5 A5 HEAE ©

AEEXEEAERLT 2011/2012 4F#H;



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012

BE2012F3 531 HILFE
10. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 10. EEREEZHME @)
EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(b) Information regarding employees’ emoluments (b) EHEEEMESER

The five highest paid individuals of the Group included two AREBREEZSHFMALBERE
(2011: two) directors whose emoluments were included (20115 MB)EE HEZHEE
above. The emoluments of the remaining three (2011: three) BEEEFXRN - E=52011F : =
highest paid individuals, not being directors, are as follows: IV EEZREHFMALTHNOT :

2012 2011

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FET

Salaries and other benefits 4 M E =R 1,862 1,660

Retirement benefits costs RKREFIAA 36 39

1,898 1,699

Their emoluments were all within HK$1,000,000. %% 2 <398R 1,000,000 T ©
During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group MEEEAN AEEREYNME TR
to the directors and the other five highest paid individuals AR EEEANZEEHMZ AL 1
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as BIIATE I AN E B 7 888 ol k&
compensation for loss of office. In addition, during both B ZfE o N MER BEES

years, no director waived any emoluments. WEEAHE -

100 Easyknit Enterprises Holdings Limited 2011/2012 Annual Report



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B RRME @

For the year ended 31 March 2012

BE2012F3 /31 HILFE
11. TAXATION 11. Hi1E
2012 2011
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Continuing operations: BERSEEK
The charge comprises: HIEFRX B -
Hong Kong Profits Tax BRENER
— current year - NEE = 39
- 39
Deferred tax (note 27) BERIE (7 27) 2,060 4,900
2,060 4,939

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made for the
year ended 31 March 2012 as the Group has no assessable

profit for the year.

Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year ended 31 March 2011 was
calculated at 16.5% of the estimated assessable profit for that

year.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise
Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of
the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1

January 2008 onwards.

No provision for PRC Enterprise income tax had been made as

the Group had no assessable profit for both years.

EAEBREZ201243 A31 BILFETE
ERTIEF - MAFIRAFEE 2B AFEH
B o

HZE2011E3A31 BILEEZBEANER
R EE LT RS2 16.5% 1 & -

BREPEAGECEMESRE(CEMSESH])
REEMBHR2EREDN  AEBRSE
ZHBE AR E2008F1A1HRBZHE A
25% o

PR 7 5% [ 70 M8 47 2 9 0 4 PR AR B 7 - K
PEHRTPELEAEHEE -

AEEXEEAERLT 2011/2012 4F#H;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continueq)

REMBRRME @
For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE2012F3H31 HLLFE
11. TAXATION (continued) 1. B8 (@)
Taxation for the year can be reconciled to the results per the AEERERES 2HARGREEZLHERN
consolidated statement of comprehensive income as follows: N
2011
HK$°000
FET
(Loss) profit before taxation (from B A (B8 & F
continuing operations) (RERELEER) 49,816
Tax (credit) charge at the applicable rate @R X 16.5% =t E 2 Fi18
of 16.5% (2011: 16.5%) (Gt A)FX (20114 : 16.5%) 8,219
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax ~ EEZHUA 2
purposes iEh-7- (2,481)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for TEHFFH S 2
tax purposes PETE 623
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERBIEE B HETE 279
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses HABERERZ
previously not recognised TIBEE (1,707)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries & fth 7)3% 2 B A &)
operating in other jurisdictions BMEZRZE 177
Others Hith (171)
Tax charge for the year AEERIERE 4,939
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B RRME @

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BIZE2012F3 31 HILFE

12. (LOSS) PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM
CONTINUING OPERATIONS

12 REFARERB2AFE (B
18) A

2012 2011
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
(Loss) profit for the year from continuing ~ KEHELEEK 2
operations has been arrived at after REE (1R R
charging: B :
Directors’ remuneration (note 10(a)) EEMe (AL 103) 2,952 2,996
Other staff costs, including retirement HiBTER - FRIK
benefits costs & FpK AR 11,563 11,342
Total staff costs BIKARRE 14,515 14,338
Amortisation of intangible asset B EE 2B
(included in administrative expenses) (EREETHAXA) 1,823 3,126
Auditor’s remuneration ZE AN & 1,159 1,024
Cost of inventories recognised as BERRAFAIZEFE
an expense B AR 256,138 309,487
Depreciation e 619 500
and after crediting to other income: RAEMBAZA :
Dividend income from listed investments ~ EriT & 2 i B4R A 1,126 153
Interest income FlE A 2,585 213
13. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 13. DRILEE T

On 22 November 2009, the directors resolved to cease the
bleaching and dyeing and knitting businesses and these
businesses were ceased in December 2009 and accordingly
were presented as discontinued operations in the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2010. The results of these discontinued operations included
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income and

consolidated statement of cash flows are set out below.

R2009F 11 A22H  EFAERIEFERR
MEBET - MZEEBER2009F 12 A%
EERASEHZ2010F3 31 BIEFEZ
GREMBREZNAERELEEL - B
REGRAZARERRGARERERZE
BRI EBREERTINT -

AEEXEEAERLT 2011/2012 4F#H;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BZE2012F3 31 HILFE

13. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2011, the assets classified
as held for sale with carrying value of HK$37,403,000 were
disposed of to the People’s Government of Zhili Town, Wuxing
District, Huzhou City, Zhejiang Province of the PRC (“Zhili Town
Government”) at a consideration of HK$55,995,000, resulting
in a gain on disposal amounted to HK$18,592,000. Also, Zhili
Town Government made a compensation to the Group totalling
HK$15,271,000 for change of intended use of the three parcels
of land disposed of, which are situated in Zhili Town. The
attributable tax expense (business tax, land appreciation tax and

enterprise income tax) amounted to HK$12,475,000 in total.

The profit (loss) for the year from the discontinued operations is

analysed as follows:

13. R UL REEE )

R2011E3ABLEFEFERN FEEAR
37,403,000 8 T 2 FIfEREHEEEERR
{855,995,000 % 7T & T BT A M
MRAARSGEEARBN((HEEBRSG])
H & e 25 518,592,000 4 7T © L4 BB E
BRTH=RILE T RS2 E e
RAEEELA$£15,271,0005 T 2 {8 -
MBI ERS (BEH - THIEER RO ER
B55) 2 &6 £/ 12,475,00057T °

KRADKRIEEEEB 2 AEERT(BE)D
g U ENE

2012 2011
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Loss of discontinued operation for REBRIEEEE L
the year REEFFBE = (1,205)
Gain on disposal of assets constituting BREEERILEEER
a discontinued operation, net of tax HEEENE - EMBRHEIE
(Note) (Kr:t) 1,285 21,388
1,285 20,183

Note: The amount for the year ended 31 March 2012 represents post-

tax gain on disposal of assets classified as held for sale.

The amount for the year ended 31 March 2011 comprised gain on
disposal of assets classified as held for sale and compensation
from Zhili Town Government. At 31 March 2011, RMB6,660,000
(HK$7,912,000) of these proceeds remained unsettled and was
included in “trade and other receivables” (see note 21). Such

amount was collected during the year ended 31 March 2012.

Hiat - BE2012F3 A3 HLEEE e BEAH
EIERELERE 2 BB -

BZ2011F3A31ALEE ZewEs
HEERIELEEE 2 e R 2
FFZf{E- R2011F3A31H AR¥
6,660,000 7C(7,912,000 7 7T ) 14 & 2 3 &
BIEEIE S REMENRIE (R HE21)
Mo L& BEREE2012F3A3181LF
ERYKE o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HREMBBRERME @)
For the year ended 31 March 2012
BZE20123H31 HILFE

13. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued)

13. BRI REEK @)

2011
HK$°000
FET

Loss for the year from discontinued BRIEREERCAFE

operations 18
Revenue from BEBERE

Bleaching and dyeing pebzC

— sales of goods - HEEY 89

Cost of sales $HE ARG AR (139)
Gross loss B (50)
Other income HAh A 152
Administrative expenses TEAY (1,307)
Loss for the year from discontinued REBRIEEERER

operations AEEEE (1,205)
Loss for the year from discontinued REBRIEERB I AEE

operations includes the following: EEeEATER
Other staff costs, including retirement HuBTEH  2ERIK

benefits costs & FpK A 180
Auditor’s remuneration ZE AN & 115
Cost of inventories recognised as BRERAAIZFE

an expense B 139
Depreciation e 115
Exchange loss, net b 5 1% 5 478
Interest income FEWA (39)
Cash flows from discontinued REBRLBEERCHERE

operations
Net cash inflows from operating activities RE&EEEH 2 HERAFE 14,142
Net cash inflows from investing activities FRREEE 2R LR A FEE 44,673
Net cash inflows REMAFRE 58,815
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012

BE2012F3 531 HILFE

13. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued) 13. ERLREXEK @
The major class of assets of the bleaching and dyeing and RIBEHK - B 2N GEE T BEARLRY
knitting operations at the end of the reporting period, which has EBIEHEEEZ EARGBERIEESR
been presented separately as assets classified as held for sale ENT :

in the consolidated statement of financial position, is as follows:

2012 2011
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Property, plant and equipment ME - BEREE = 227
14. BASIC (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE 14, BREXN(EE) BRI
From continuing and discontinued operations: REFELCERCRIEREEE !
The calculation of the basic (loss) earnings per share attributable ARRRREG 2 ERER(EE) B IR
to owners of the Company is based on the following data: BATEMGE
2012 2011
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
(Loss) profit for the purpose of basic REREN(BE)AFNTE
(loss) earnings per share 2 (E18) s A (42,730) 65,060
2012 2011
Number of shares BRGEE
Weighted average number of ordinary HERER(ER)BNmE
shares for the purpose of basic (loss) Z I A R
earnings per share 2B 550,686,675 426,738,118
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B RRME @

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BIZE2012F3 31 HILFE

14. BASIC (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE

(continued)

From continuing operations:

The calculation of the basic (loss) earnings per share from
continuing operations attributable to owners of the Company is

based on the following data:

(Loss) profit figures are calculated as follows:

14. 3REX(BR) BN =)
REFERSERK
RERECEEBRBR AR ARR L SR

ER(ER)BMIHREBEATERTE

(BER)EMEFEMT :

2012 2011
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
(Loss) profit for the year attributable to BERARARREZAEE
owners of the Company (B8) &7 (42,730) 65,060
Adjusted for: Profit for the year from HE REABRIEEEER
discontinued operations RER & (1,285) (20,183)
(Loss) profit for the purpose of basic HRHFBEEEB < BRER
(loss) earnings per share from (BR)ANMS
continuing operations (EB18)a T (44,015) 44,877
2012 2011
Number of shares RGEE
Weighted average number of ordinary HERER(ER)BIME
shares for the purpose of basic (loss) Z IEFH D
earnings per share B 550,686,675 426,738,118

No diluted (loss) earnings per share for both years is presented
as there were no potential ordinary shares outstanding for both

years.

RTS8 A B TR E TS BRR
5 BR2FIMAEE 2 SREE(ESE)R
7l o

AEEXEEAERLT 2011/2012 4F#H;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BZE2012F3 31 HILFE

14.

15.

BASIC (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE

(continued)
From discontinued operations:

Basic earnings per share for the discontinued operations is
HK$0.002 (2011: HK$0.047) per share, based on the profit for
the year from discontinued operations of HK$1,285,000 (2011:
HK$20,183,000) and the denominators detailed above for basic

(loss) earnings per share.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(@) During the year, the Group had the following transactions

with wholly-owned subsidiaries of Easyknit International:

Rental expense HeRx

14.

15.

BREAXR(ER) BN @

RECRILEEE !

BRIEREEBK 2 BRERETFAER0.002
AIC(20114F : §R0.047387T) « I IR IE
REBRIEEER 2 RNFEHH 1,285,000
%7t (20114 : 20,183,000/ 7T) & A £t
ZERER(BR)BFZATMAE -

BEALRS BEXS

(@) FA AEEEXERARZZEMNEBA
AZRBIT

2012 2011
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FAT
2,482 2,275

Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, a director of the Company, is also one
of the beneficiaries under a family trust holding 36.74%
(2011: 36.74%) equity interest in Easyknit International at
31 March 2012. She also holds 21.95% (2011: 21.95%)
equity interest of Easyknit International through an entity
wholly-owned by her. The Company is itself a subsidiary of
Easyknit International at 31 March 2012 and an associate

of Easyknit International at 31 March 2011.

ARAEEE FHRLT - 2012563 A
31BN A A k& B 36.74% (2011
F36.74%) BHRIEERAX AL
— BNER-—HELEBECEE
i # A k & B £21.95% (2011 4 :
21.95%) # & o R201253 831K
AEARFRKERARz —HNBAT -
R2011F3A31HAKERE 2 —H

BENE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B RRME @

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BZE2012E3 31 HILFE

15. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

In January 2010, the Company entered into a consultancy
agreement with Mr. Koon Wing Yee for consultancy
services provided by Mr. Koon Wing Yee to the Group for
a fee of HK$498,000 per annum which shall be payable
in arrears by twelve monthly instalments of HK$41,500
each. The consultancy agreement is for a period of one
year commencing on 15 January 2010 and expired in
January 2011. Mr. Koon Wing Yee is the spouse of Ms. Lui
Yuk Chu. Consultancy fee paid and payable to Mr. Koon
Wing Yee during the year ended 31 March 2011 amounted
to HK$394,250. In January 2011, the Company entered
into an employment agreement with Mr. Koon Wing Yee
to act as general manager of the Company for a salary
of HK$50,000 per month. The employment agreement
commenced on 21 February 2011 but may be terminated
by either party at any time by three months’ notice. The
remuneration of Mr. Koon Wing Yee as general manager of
the Company during the year ended 31 March 2012 was
HK$662,000 (2011: HK$102,000) and was included in the
“compensation of key management personnel” in (c) below
in respect of his employment as general manager of the

Group with effect from 21 February 2011.

15.BEALIRE BERS®

(b)

R2010F1 A RAREEKE L
BRIV —HERBZE  EXBREER
HERRETAEE GFRNER
498,000/ 7T * & & H 41,5007 T 5
TZHE A ZER IR EH2010F1
H15B R AH—F I K2011
FI1AKLE BXBEXREREEHRIT
2B BE2011F3A31HILFE
EXNREZNEXKBLEECERE
/394,250 JT o M2011E1 A &K
ARRBKBRETIERGZ N
A %750,000% T ERAE AAXLDEBLK
B ZzERMZEH2011F2H21 A5
B BREEREM—FHRTF=EAR
AR BHE2012F3A31HILF
NEXEAREERADRBEEWE
#5662,0005% 7£(20114F : 102,000 7T )
REBEBKELEH2011F2 A 21
AERARAEB  BEEEAEENT
CBZIXEEBABZEHMIA -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BZE2012E3H31 HILFE

15. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(c) Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of key

management during the year was as follows:

Short-term employee benefits ySEiL =R
Salaries and other benefits e REMER
Contributions to retirement benefit  E{REFIET 212

schemes

15.BEALRE BERSG®

(c) EEEEABZHM

EENHEMTIEEEABRFAZHE

mT -
2012 2011

HK$°000 HK$°000

FET FET

4,310 3,813

60 49

4,370 3,862

The remuneration of directors and key executives are
determined by the remuneration committee and executive
directors respectively having regard to the performance of

individuals and market trends.

EENTETBAEBZME D B
ZEEMHTESRRMENALZRE

EMGBEMETE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B RRME @

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BIZE2012F3 31 HILFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16. Y15 - BERRE

Furniture,
fixtures and

equipment Motor Construction
B vehicles  in progress Total
RERZE bk REIR &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FETL FAT FET FET
COST B
At 1 April 2010 R2010%F4 A1 H 423 2,017 15,058 17,498
Exchange adjustments B 5 572 3 15 655 673
Additions E 59 - - 59
Disposal L& (7) - - (7)
At 31 March 2011 R2011F3A31H 478 2,032 15,713 18,223
Exchange adjustments B 5 5% 3 13 554 570
Additions NE 45 - 123 168
At 31 March 2012 M2012%63H31H 526 2,045 16,390 18,961
DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT #7& K i
At 1 April 2010 R2010%4 A1 A 73 1,004 15,058 16,135
Exchange adjustments B 5 5 2 3 14 451 468
Provided for the year KEERE 141 474 — 615
Reversal of impairment loss RERTER 2 RE - - (8,777) (8,777)
recognised in profit or loss BEZR
Eliminated on disposal k==t 6 ) - - “)
At 31 March 2011 R201153A31H 213 1,492 6,732 8,437
Exchange adjustments B 5 5 2 3 12 191 206
Provided for the year KEERE 150 469 = 619
Reversal of impairment loss RERTER 2 RE
recognised in profit or loss BERD - - (1,027) (1,027)
At 31 March 2012 R2012%F3H31H 366 1,973 5,896 8,235
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 March 2012 H2012%3H31H 160 72 10,494 10,726
At 31 March 2011 R2011E£3A31H 265 540 8,981 9,786

AEEXEEAERLT 2011/2012 4F#H;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012

BE2012F3 /31 HILFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. Y% - BERRE @
(continued)
The above items of property, plant and equipment other than BRI EREEDE  BERRE
construction in progress are depreciated on a straight-line basis HUBGERIBAT 2 o{EBFHE7E

according to the following useful lives:

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3 to 10 years Hh - HRERE 3104

Motor vehicles 5 to 10 years B 52104

During the year ended 31 March 2011, the directors of the REZE2011F3A31BIEFR ' KRARES
Company decided to resume certain construction in progress, REMEETRBAEZERBLEEZIR
which was previously fully impaired, for future leasing purpose. IERBEIEMEAZE - At - RARZESR
Hence the directors of the Company assessed the recoverable BRUAEREXEMEMLBEMGEETE - U
amount of the construction in progress which is determined TEEREIRRREHAR T KREEE - 2
based on valuation performed by independent qualified EZERERATR KRGS BB E R EER
professional property valuer carried out at the end of the LEEERREEWA ZHE WA FE -
reporting period. By reference to net rental income allowing for It B E2012F 3831 HIEFERAEEE
reversionary income potential using the applicable market yields i [@1,027,000 % 7£(2011 4 : 8,777,000)%
for the respective locations and types of properties. As a result, TRBHERER -

a reversal of impairment loss of HK$1,027,000 was recognised
in profit or loss for the year ended 31 March 2012 (2011:
HK$8,777,000).
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Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements (continuea)

e B RRME @

For the year ended 31 March 2012

BIZE2012F3 31 HILFE
17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17. REW#
HK$’'000
FET
FAIR VALUE DNFEE
At 1 April 2010 2010F4 A1 H 255,163
Exchange adjustments BEE 5 S B 7,099
Additions NE 961
Increase in fair value NS R 37,374
At 31 March 2011 2011 €3 A31H 300,597
Exchange adjustments [ 3 6,338
Additions NG 2,243
Increase in fair value NFEEM 33,979
At 31 March 2012 R201243 A31H 343,157
The carrying value of investment properties shown above A EREDZ 2 REEREMEMR
comprises properties situated on:
2012 2011
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Land in Hong Kong BT
Long lease REAL 179,000 135,000
Land in the PRC B 43
Medium-term lease HERFE 4 164,157 165,597
343,157 300,597
The fair values of the Group’s investment properties in Hong AREFR2012FE3 A31 B 2B BIHREMEN
Kong at 31 March 2012 have been arrived at on the basis of TFEDNRENERSEBE B IS ERE
a valuation carried out as at that date, by Knight Frank Petty 2y EEIT AR RIE BT A TR A 7] ([ 5
Limited (“Knight Frank”) (2011: Vigers Appraisal & Consulting W01 F : g EETHEBAERA
Limited), a firm of independent qualified professional property BRZAPEITHECEEEE - KHEE
valuers not connected with the Group. Knight Frank is member BREMmEBees  FEREMEZLHET
of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors. The valuation of RERBETYEODPRIBR TS ELE
investment properties in Hong Kong was arrived at by reference TE e

to market evidence of recent transaction prices for similar
properties.
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Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements (continuea)

e BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BZE2012F3 31 HILFE

17.

18.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties in the
PRC at 31 March 2012 have been arrived at on the basis of a
valuation carried out as at that dates by Knight Frank (2011:
Vigers Appraisal & Consulting Limited). The valuation of the
investment properties in the PRC was arrived at by reference
to net rental income allowing for reversionary income potential
using the applicable market yields for the respective locations

and types of properties.

All of the Group’s leasehold interests in land held under
operating leases to earn rentals are measured using the fair
value model and are classified and accounted for as investment

properties.

GOODWILL

Cost %
At 1 April 2010 and 31 March 2011

Impairment loss recognised in profit or loss

At 31 March 2012

7201054 A1AR2011F3A31RH
BB R 2 RERE

M2012563 431 H

17. REVMZE @)

AEBR2012F3 A31 HZHBREMEL
ATETDHRGRZBEET 2 HEMETE
FRREYMEZHED2ZRERABATSK
wZ AR R ERR 2 EZRRRER
WAZ RS WA FEE o

ARBERARGEHAOAETRIES <11t
BOBRDARFERAFERGEARE
MEIE -

18. B&

HK$’000
FAT

39,313
(39,313)

For the purpose of impairment testing during the year ended
31 March 2012, goodwill set out above has been allocated to
the cash-generating unit (“CGU”) engaged in garment sourcing
and exporting. During the year ended 31 March 2012, the
management of the Group assessed the recoverable amount of

the CGU with reference to the value in use.

BEZE2012F 3 A31 HIEFRAZEHERENR
HAmE Lz EAEE REERBREOK
KZRBERCELEN((REELEM]) -
REZE2012F3A31 HIEFR  AEBER
B2EFRBEMTEREELEM 2T
E1& 88 o
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Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements (continuea)

e B RRME @

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BZE2012E3 31 HILFE

18. GOODWILL (continued) 18. & ®@)

The recoverable amount has been determined based on a value
in use calculation. This calculation uses cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management covering
a 1-year period, which is based on actual sales and operating
results of the CGU in the current year, and a discount rate of
5% (2011: 8%). Cash flows beyond the 1-year period has been
extrapolated using a zero (2011: zero) growth rate. The growth
rate is based on the relevant industry growth forecasts and does
not exceed the average long-term growth rate for the relevant
industry. Another key assumption for the value in use calculation
is the budgeted gross margin, which is determined based on
the CGU’s sales volume, cost of sales and operational expenses
achieved in the current year, and management’s expectations
for the market development. The impairment testing resulted in
impairment loss recognised in profit or loss for the year ended
31 March 2012 of HK$39,313,000 (2011: nil). The impairment
loss arose in view of deterioration in sales level and operating
results of the CGU in the current year, due to the global
economic downturn. The management of the Group considered
that there would be no significant improvement in the Group’s
operation in garment sourcing and exporting, and determined
that no future benefit would be generated from the goodwill and
intangible asset included in the CGU in garment sourcing and
exporting. As a result, goodwill and intangible asset allocated
to the CGU were fully impaired during the year ended 31 March
2012.

AlEeEEREAEFAEEMNEE - %
FENEREERESEAR —F o MBE
BB REEMKR5%(2011F : 8%)
FHRE BERBRBREELEUAFR
CEBRHERKERE - —FULEZBRER
BANTQONMEF : T)RRRZHERFE -
BEXDREEHATECERBARTEHE
BEBTEZFHRMERE - FHAEER
HE7HEMFERBABEERN  LIRRBHE
CEHABNAFEZHES  HEKARE
ERYREREHMSEECEHET -
18R] 5,38 BURL B £518 39,313,000 75 7T.(2011
FE)REE2012683A31BLFAZE
HER A2KEBETREBREELEEN
AEEZHEERT REEFEFRM LR
BEEE ~EEEEERA  ASEZKE
REARKEBKRIEEALE  TRAEB
FEREREORKEBACREEELSN
NZBBEREFEERTEERRNE - A
W AEERSELEN HEREVEAE
REZE2012F3 831 HIEFAZERE °
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Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements (continuea)

e BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012

BIZ2012F3H31 HILFE
19. INTANGIBLE ASSET 19. B EE
Customer
relationship
EFBE
HK$°000
FET
CoSsT R
At 1 April 2010, 31 March 2011 and 720104 418 - 20114
31 March 2012 3A31HK20123F31H 25,000
AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT BERRE
At 1 April 2010 2010F4 A1 H 260
Charge for the year REEHH 3,126
At 31 March 2011 7201143 431 H 3,386
Charge for the year REFHH 1,823
Impairment loss recognised in profit or loss RERE R REFSE 19,791
At 31 March 2012 7201243 431 H 25,000
CARRYING VALUES IREE
At 31 March 2012 7201243 431 H -
At 31 March 2011 7201143 4318 21,614

The customer relationship has a finite useful life and is
amortised on a straight-line basis over 8 years. The useful life
of the customer relationship is determined with reference to the
estimated future revenue from the customer relationship with
a customer attrition rate of 5% which is based on historical
customer turnover information. The management is of the view
that the future economic benefits that can be derived from the
customer relationship beyond the 8-year period are insignificant.

The recoverable amount of the CGU in garment sourcing
and exporting, which includes the intangible asset, has been
determined based on a value in use calculation, details of which
are set out in note 18.

REBEDARENERFHRAERENS
FENEE - FPBAGRIAERFRNZER
BELEFPEXBEANMBEZ%EPE
MEZRRREFPHAG BT REMET °
BEEERS  8EHRMBR  UEPEEMS
ZARREEHGEL NER ©

BREFVEEZEBRHEORKZESES
B BB REFEFREARME
T FBRKIFE18A o
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Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

mEMBHRERME @
For the year ended 31 March 2012
BZ2012£3 /31 HILFE
20. INVENTORIES 20. 7§
2011
HK$’'000
FET
Raw materials R 6,155
21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21. B R H B RIE
2011
HK$°000
FET
Trade receivables 2 S WA 29,089
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts B RIZIREME =
29,089
Prepayments TBNFRIA 1,080
Deposits paid to suppliers to be realised i1 ERNER 7 45
within 1 year HERES 20,347
Receivable from disposal of assets HR1ERER 2 HE
classified as held for sale to be FVEREL EBE
realised within 1 year 2 FEWRIR 7,912
Other receivables Hofth & R 6,197
64,625

KEEBEXEEERAT 2011/2012 4#H
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Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements (continuea)

e BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BZE2012F3 31 HILFE

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(continued)

The Group allows an average credit period of up to 90 days to
its customers. The aged analysis of trade receivables, based on

the invoice date, at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

0 — 60 days 0260H
61 — 90 days 61290 H
Over 90 days #8890 H

1. EZ R EMERRE @)

AEBRTERFZFHRESEWAR - R
BRERS  ZHENZFERRE R R
BT

2012 2011
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FBT
15,550 26,273
20 dib

- 1,841
15,570 29,089

The management closely monitors the credit quality of trade and
other receivables and considers trade and other receivables that

are neither past due nor impaired to be of a good credit quality.

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balances are debtors
with aggregate carrying amount of HK$544,000 (2011:
HK$1,998,000) which are past due at the reporting date for
which the Group has not provided for allowance. The Group

does not hold any collateral over these balances.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables which are

past due but not impaired:

Over due by 1 to 60 days 2iEH1£60H
Over due by 61 to 90 days EiBH61290H
Over due by over 90 days EiBHEB0 A

ERERTERE S NAMRYUKAZEER
ERRRARREBHRAEZES NAME
WRBERERFEEER -

RBERE KNEBE S HERFIBELEH
o BRE E A £544,0007% (20116
1,998,000 ) AE BEER BT RERE o
AEEWR AR S HERFTA EER o

BRSIERREY E S EEHE S BR AT
o

2012 2011
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FAT
523 978

20 538

1 482

544 1,998
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Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements (continuea)

e B RRME @

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BIZE2012F3 31 HILFE

21.

22,

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(continued)

Based on the historical experience of the Group, trade
receivables that are past due are generally recoverable and as a
result, no allowance was made for trade receivables at the end

of the reporting period.

The Group’s trade and other receivables that are denominated
in currencies other than the functional currencies of the relevant

group entities are set out below:

1. EZREMEVRRE@®)

AREREEELSR BHZEHEKTEA
—AREP A AME - Rt RIEHR > LR
A% EE RYG R R -

AEBNEBERERNEER NI ER
NWEZE S REAMRUSIENT

2012 2011

HK$’000 HK$°000

FET FET

usD e 14,391 28,788

RMB AR 157 3
INVESTMENTS HELD FOR TRADING 2. FEEERE

The investments held for trading comprise equity securities
listed in Hong Kong and are stated at fair value which are based

on the quoted market bid prices on the Stock Exchange.

FIEEBEREABERBRE LT ZEF YRR
BRMzh5 LA B A FEZY -
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FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

The Group acquired equity linked investments with financial
institutions in Hong Kong. The equity linked investments
contained embedded derivative, the return of which was
determined with reference to the closing price of two equity
securities listed Hong Kong. The equity linked investments
are designated as at fair value through profit or loss at initial
recognition. The principal amounts are with fixed coupon interest
rates and remaining term to maturity ranges from three to four
months. The notes contain terms enabling the issuers either to
deliver the underlying equity securities on maturity if the market
prices of underlying securities are lower than their respective
predetermined reference stock prices or cash settlement of the
principal and interest if market prices of the underlying securities
are higher than their respective predetermined reference stock
prices. The notes are subject to the option for early termination

at the discretion of the holders.

During the year, the Group acquired equity linked
investments with a principal amount of HK$30,000,000
(2011: HK$20,000,000) and early terminated the equity linked
investments either in cash and principal together with interest
were received or redeemed by receiving the underlying equity
securities. At 31 March 2011, the equity linked investments
were stated at fair value based on valuation provided by the

counterparty financial institutions for equivalent instruments.

Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements (continuea)

e BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BZE2012F3 31 HILFE

23. FINANCIAL ASSETS DESIGNATED AS AT 23. AT EABHZvsmEE

ARBEREECRHBERARZHARE -
BEHAREREASITETR AR
%%WEK%%LW&?%%ZWmFﬁ#
o IREHBIRERNRERR REREA
ﬁﬁﬁk%ﬁ°$@ﬁﬂi%$&ﬁﬁ£§
MEAZS ZREEEHERAERTAERE
%mf1ﬂ%§ﬁi%%§1fﬁ%ﬁJ
RERRREERS  EFHFMESR

FEEBRELERMEBEI E BRARER
ME - HREATNBERRERRLRR -

RER - KN& B A £30,000,000% 7T
(2011 4 : 20,000,000 7T ) 2 Bk T # 8912

UREAXUBMASERFIS - RER
JHMH&ZHWF«%NE%HTH“@ ° 122011
£3H31H REBMRENREISITZE
BERE ARSI AGEERRATES
S o
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For the year ended 31 March 2012
BIZE2012F3 31 HILFE

24, BANK BALANCES AND CASH

The bank balances and cash held by the Group comprise short-
term bank deposits with an original maturity of three months or

less, at prevailing market interest rates ranging from 0.001% to
3.1% (2011: 0.001% to 2.6%) per annum.

The Group’s bank balances and cash that are denominated in
currencies other than the functional currencies of the relevant
group entities are set out below:

HKD BT
RMB ARE
usD X7
EUR BT

24, BITGEBRRE

AEERAZROILEBEBSOERBRTT
BEME0.001 EE3.1E 2 (2011 4F :
0.001EZ26F) 2 =A%z EHzE
HRSRITIF K o

ASENEREEERNEEHE U 2T
IIEZRITHER KRS T -

2012 2011
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FAT
28 28

14 7
40,959 6,567
10,199 3

AEEXEEAERLT 2011/2012 4F#H;
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REMBRRME @
For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE201243H31 HILFE
25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 25. B 5 R H AT R
The aged analysis of trade payables, based on the invoice date, BERZRH ESENIENRSH R
at the end of the reporting period is as follows: ERANMT :
2011
HK$’000
THT
0 — 60 days 0£60H 18,697
Over 90 days #3890 H 155
Trade payables B SR IR 18,852
Rental deposits received and rental Bk REKAS
received in advance 2,322
Deposits received for disposal of assets 1 ERE IR 2 HEF|{E
classified as held for sale to be BIEHEEEZ
realised within 1 year Bl e 950
Accruals BiREA 3,575
Other taxes payable HoAh e IE 9,798
Other payables H A fE - 5078 632
36,129
The average credit period on purchases of goods is 30 days. BEZFHKBRERAA30H -
The Group’s trade and other payables that are denominated in REBNABEB TR LSy B
currencies other than the functional currencies of the relevant FIEY 8BS REMERZENT :
group entities are set out below:
2011
HK$’000
FET
USD XL 114
RMB AR 1,109
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For the year ended 31 March 2012
BIZE2012F3 31 HILFE

26. BILLS PAYABLE

At the end of the reporting period, the bills payable are aged
within 30 days (2011: nil). All of the Group’s bills payable are
denominated in the functional currencies of the relevant group
entities.

27. DEFERRED TAXATION

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of
financial position, deferred tax assets and liabilities have been
offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances
for financial reporting purposes:

Deferred tax assets BLEHBEE
Deferred tax liabilities ELERIBEE

26. B E

RBEEHR BNREZKEK/0E R
(20115 - &) - AREZBRNREHN
HEEEER 2 NEERIE -

27. EEHR

AEEMBRRRCZIIME  BEEREE
ERARCHEE  AMBREN S BELTH
TR DITIE

2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE F&T
878 335
(27,238) (24,091)
(26,360) (23,756)

The following are the major deferred tax (liabilities) assets
recognised and movements thereon during the current and prior

REARBEFECRA/TIEZELHEA
(BR)BEAREEHNT :

years:
Revaluation Intangible
of properties asset Tax losses Total
NEERE BREE HEEHR &%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
AT T FET AT
At 1 April 2010 R201064 518 (14,312) (4,082) 149 (18,245)
Exchange adjustments B 5 5 (611) - - (611)
(Charge) credit to profit or loss RAFEBET (%)
for the year iA (5,602) 516 186 (4,900)
At 31 March 2011 1201143 F31R (20,525) (3,566) 335 (23,756)
Exchange adjustments 5 (544) - - (544)
(Charge) credit to profit or loss RAERERSR (%)
for the year A (6,169) 3,566 543 (2,060)
At 31 March 2012 1201263 A31H (27,238) - 878 (26,360)

AEEXEEAERLT 2011/2012 4F#H;
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For the year ended 31 March 2012
BZE2012F3 31 HILFE

27. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued) 27. BB E (%)

At 31 March 2012, tax losses not recognised in the
consolidated financial statements were HK$34,594,000 (2011:
HK$16,556,000). The losses can be carried forward indefinitely.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of such
deductible temporary differences due to the unpredictability of

future profit streams.

7201243 A31 8 - #i 18 /& 5 34,594,000
B7(2011 F : 16,556,000 78 70 ) I8 A R &R
BUMBRENER  ZEBIERDES -
AR R R AN - BAR B R
ARG ZRER ZHBREERBEEE

28. SHARE CAPITAL 28. g 7x
Nominal
value per Number
share of shares  Amount
BREE RO EE e
Note HK$ HK$’000
k23 BT FET
Authorised: BIE
At 1 April 2010, 31 March N201054 818 »
2011 and 31 March 2012 2011$3A31HK

201253 A31H

0.01 20,000,000,000 200,000

Issued and fully paid: ERTREE
At 1 April 2010 Mm2010F4 81 H 0.01 367,124,450 3,671
Rights issue of shares HAAR D () 0.01 183,562,225 1,836
At 31 March 2011 and R2011F3A31HR
31 March 2012 201243 H31H 0.01 550,686,675 5,507
Note: Hiet

(@ On 2 March 2011, the Company allotted 183,562,225 rights shares
of HK$0.01 each at the subscription price of HK$0.35 per rights
share on the basis of one rights share for every two existing
ordinary shares held. The Company raised HK$63,808,000 (net of
expenses) with the intention at the time of rights issue to finance

potential property acquisitions and for general working capital use.

All shares issued during the year ended 31 March 2011 rank pari

passu with the then existing shares in issue in all respects.

(@ M2011F3A2H ' ARAREREHAEMK
BELBRROBEE —BRERRODZLEE
G ER A 0.35 B T2 REBE - B%
183,562,225 R F AR E1E0.01 B T2 R 1D °
AN FE15 63,808,000 7T (FIBR RIS ) -
REREFITEREBEENYEREZRER
ER—REEES

FTEREZ20114F3 A31 B It FAEITRG
REFTHEERERITROZERSEF -
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For the year ended 31 March 2012
BIZE2012F3 31 HILFE

29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 29, B R HEGT &

On 6 June 2002, a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) was approved by the shareholders of the Company.
Under the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the board of
directors of the Company may, at its absolute discretion, offer
options to any employee (full-time and part-time), director,
supplier, consultant or advisor of any member of the Group to
subscribe for shares in the Company subject to the terms and
conditions stipulated therein. The Share Option Scheme is valid
during the period of 10 years commencing 6 June 2002, unless

otherwise cancelled or amended.

The purposes of the Share Option Scheme are to attract
and retain the best available personnel, to provide additional
incentives to eligible participants and to promote the success of

the business of the Company and its subsidiaries.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued under
the Share Option Scheme must not (when aggregate with any
shares to be issued under any other share option schemes of
the Company) exceed 10% of the shares in issue at the date of

adoption of the Share Option Scheme.

The maximum number of shares issuable upon the exercise
of the share options granted to each eligible participant of the
Share Option Scheme within any 12-month period, is limited to
1% of the shares of the Company in issue. Any further grant of
share options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’
approval in a general meeting of the Company with such grantee

and his associate(s) abstaining from voting.

200266 A6H @ AARIREAE—IBE
st 2I([ R ER 2 ]) - BEBREST 2
ZIET RARESGAREBHMIERE
BEZAEFTRE 2 GHRRGEHRASEE
AKERRAIZEMEE (R BAER) &
. HERN BRAXBEHAARLIRBAR
AR 2 EARKE - IR EIBRIEAE b 75
A EE] - BAIH 200246 A6 HEst
10 BRI —E A

BEETIEERIRREARERAAG
REFISBTRERLEERERERARA
FEMBRRZKINER -

REBBRESSITERTZRERNEAE T
15 (BARIB AR Bl 2 (E o] E At BB A it 2178 T
BOZEMRND A B BEBNRABRE
AEIERZERITRINZ10% -

REF12EARRR - ERRES B2 KA
BRSEETEEMER T 2 BIRER &
FTEOIZESBRNHE - UARREETR
DZI%BR - E—FRHBRALRBELZE
BHE - RERRRARARRRAS L4tET
AR MaARAREBMEAZNERS -
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The exercise period of the share options is determined by the
board of directors of the Company and shall end on a date
which is not later than 10 years from the date of grant of the
options. There is no specific requirement under the Share
Option Scheme that an option must be held for any minimum
period before it can be exercised, but its terms provide that the
board of directors of the Company has the discretion to impose
a minimum period at the time of offer of any particular option.
The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 14
days from the date of the offer, with the payment of a nominal

consideration of HK$1 in total by the offeree.

The exercise price in respect of any particular option of the
Share Option Scheme may be determined by the board of
directors of the Company in its absolute discretion and notified
to each offeree but may not be less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on
the date of offer, which must be a business day; (ii) the average
closing price of the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for
the five business days immediately preceding the date of offer;
and (i) the nominal value of the Company’s shares on the date

of offer.

No share options were granted or exercised during the years
ended 31 March 2012 and 31 March 2011.

Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements (continuea)

e BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BZE2012F3 31 HILFE

29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 29. ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ%(ﬁ)

BREZTESRRARTNEESRE  BA
TENFEEREE REF10F 2R
BRI AT BT BAETRE
ZHMBARE AR - EEGRETA
AREFERFE  SERTEEREET
ENEABMEZKEAR XEBOAATRE
WEHMEMAREARIBREZZD I
XNSREBARERBT -

ARAEFGRRABHIEE BEER
gz ANEEEREZTEE  THE
EXENAN HEBRTEETESIRORNE
KNBEBRMEREXR )RR 2T HRE
RETH A1 R RRAD P Bk A2 BT 2 Wi {8 (i) B
ZENHBAAMEEER  RERAzEAH
WERPTHIARAIRMNBEA B2 FH T
B UR(NARBARNRENBEH CEE
(AEEERE) °

NEZE201243A31H K2011E3A31H
I FEER BT E A BRERER L
HATE o
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REMBRRME @
For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE2012F3H31 HILFE
30. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 30. EAEE
2011
HK$°000
FET
Capital expenditure contracted for but B4 ARG A BHRER D
not provided in the consolidated BECERNRY
financial statements in respect of: ToRAm
— property, plant and equipment - V% BERR 1,344
— investment properties — BB -
1,344
T .
31. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 3. REHENZH
The Group as lessee TEBERBEBEA
2011
HK$°000
FET
Minimum lease payments recognised in R EF PR
profit or loss during the year ZEERSAR 2,523
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments RI|ERR - REERATEHS 82 A
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable R ERA 2 RRFERENRZAER
operating leases which fall due as follows:
2011
HK$°000
FET
Within one year —FR 207
In the second year to fifth year inclusive % -#ZFRFE(BIEEERE) =
207
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For the year ended 31 March 2012

BE2012F3 /31 HILFE
31. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 3. REHNZH @)
(continued)

AERBEREEAA)

The Group as lessee (continued)

REBONFEARBZETHAENELZ
BAEE - BOLHPE-—EMFELE -

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for certain of its office premises. Leases are negotiated

for lease terms ranging from one to two years.

REAKEFTZ 2B BENRBEE R
WET L HARE ML -

Under the leases entered into by the Group, the lease payments
are fixed and no arrangements have been entered into for

contingent rental payments.

128

The Group as lessor KEBEEREHBA
2012 2011
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET

Property rental income earned during FARR . MERS

the year WA 5,998 5,292
Less: Outgoings X = =
Net rental income He WA F5E 5,998 5,292

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted

with tenants for the following future minimum lease payments:

RMERK  ARBEBF LA FTRARER

EROM

2012 2011

HK$°000 HK$°000

FET FET

Within one year —FR 7,175 3,866
In the second to fifth year inclusive B_EERF(REEEMF) 7,545 4,655
Over five years HBERF 495 —
15,215 8,521
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B RS SR R M =E )

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BIZE2012F3 31 HILFE

31. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

32

(continued)

The Group as lessor (continued)

Under the leases entered into by the Group, the lease payments
are fixed and no arrangements have been entered into for
contingent rental payments. The properties held have committed

tenants for terms of one to six years (2011: one to two years).

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under
the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance.
Under the MPF Scheme, the employees are required to
contribute 5% of their monthly salaries or up to a maximum of
HK$1,000 and they can choose to make additional contributions.
The employer’s monthly contributions are calculated at 5%
of the employee’s monthly salaries or up to a maximum of
HK$1,000 (the “mandatory contributions”). The employees are
entitled to 100% of the employer’s mandatory contributions

upon their retirement at the age of 65, death or total incapacity.

Employees of the subsidiaries in the PRC are members of
the state-sponsored pension scheme operated by the PRC
government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain
percentage of their payroll to the pension scheme to fund the
benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the

pension scheme is to make the required contributions.

32

1. REANZH @

AEBEEREEAE)

REASBEFTZ 2B BONRBEE R
YEITVEIABREN KL - HREVELE
BREPZHEOAY -2/ F(Q011F : —
EMF) -

BB G E

AEBRBEEERGIMEDES 2R -
iﬁih%ﬁﬂﬁ/ﬁﬁLWhﬂﬁﬂqﬁ
BeirEl]) c RaBeTET  BEARRE
BRAZHEMR5% % HFR1,000%57T - EE
WAERELEIMER - BEBAENRARK
BEZBAHSHEMRKS% HFEZ 71,000
ATT(RHIMEER]) o B ER65BRINE -
TSR TEERTAENE  IZHEEA
IR 2 100% ©

St

BeMBARCEBERTRERNRILLZ
BEMRAKEFEIKE - BRI AKH
RS EIHER  AREZ
RIAEEBIEL PR 2 S5 -

NG
%

TEALAR
T1ﬁﬁ

)JHH H+>-
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Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements (continuea)

e BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BZE2012F3 31 HILFE

32. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

(continued)

There were no forfeited contributions utilised to offset
employers’ contributions for the year. The employers’
contributions which have been dealt with in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income were as follows:

Employers’ contributions recognised in A EZEFHERZEE

profit or loss %

32. RIREFG &8 @

AERYRAB KGR AERHERER
Ho BERGEAREERERTREZEBEHR
JUNE

2012 2011
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FAT
434 470

At the end of the reporting period, there were no forfeited
contributions available to reduce the contributions payable in

the future years.

RI|ERR - WRA LU BB ER
REEZBMNHR -
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For the year ended 31 March 2012
BIZE2012F3 31 HILFE

33. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES

33. TEMBRA2FHE

72012463 A31H k201143 A31H » &
REEBHMBRARZFBNOT :

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 March
2012 and 31 March 2011 are as follows:

Proportion of

nominal value

of issued share
Nominal value capital/paid-up

of issued share registered capital/

Place of capital/paid-up indirectly held by
incorporation/ registered capital/  the Company
establishment stated capital ANABERE
and operation BRITRA/ BRITRE/
Name of subsidiary BWEL/ BREAMBRA/ BRAMRE/ Principal activities
HWBARER R REEHE ERRAEE EPRAHERDL FEEH
2012 2011
Chancemore Limited British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary US $1 100% 100% Property investment
Hong Kong LER1ET NERE
ZBRIBE /BB
Clever Wise Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary US $1 100% 100% Property investment
BEERERAA Hong Kong LER1ET MERE
EBRABE/ BB
Easyknit Global Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100% 100% Trading of garments
KERFERAT] & LRk KKEE
Gainever Corporation Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100% 100% Trading of securities
KEEBRAA B LamkoAT BEES
Grand Profit Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100% 100% Trading of garments
MaBRBRAA B LRR2ET RKEE
Easyknit Enterprises (Huzhou) Co., Ltd. PRC Registered 100% 100% Property investment
(“Enterprises Huzhou”)* i US$14,634,274 MERE
(formerly known as 7k L% (1) R RA
BRAH) 14,634,274

KEEX(AMBRAR(TANER])
(R AERKOIN) BRAF ]

AEEXEEAERLT 2011/2012 4F#H;
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For the year ended 31 March 2012

BE2012F3 /31 HILFE
33. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 3. ETEMBAR & B
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
* Enterprises Huzhou is a wholly foreign owned enterprise * WMNEEAE—BRPBERLZIINERED
established in the PRC, to be operated for 50 years up to 14 ¥ KEHAS50F 0 EZE2054F 12 A14
December 2054. B o
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company, which, in BRERRREZZER  ERMIIRZALD
the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally affected AIMBAR  REBVEAFEIFREXE
the results of the year or constituted a substantial portion of the RAKEEETERD - MILEMHBELR
assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would AZF R R ERBRILE

result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at 31 SRAEMBARR2012F3 A 31 B8, 20114
March 2012 or 31 March 2011. 3 A3 RETEMEBKES -
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HREMBBRERME @)
For the year ended 31 March 2012
BZE20123H31 HILFE

34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

OF THE COMPANY

Non-current assets

Interests in subsidiaries
Current assets

Other receivables

Bank balances

Current liabilities

Other payables
Net current assets
Net assets
Capital and reserves

Share capital

Reserves (Note)

FRBEE

il NG £

MBEE
H ity R YRR
RITRH

mBAE
H it e 508

mEEEFE

BEFE

BAR R

A
B (Hrz)

34. KA Z MR K

KEEBEXEEERAT 2011/2012 4#H

2011
HK$’000
FAT

430,140

136
91,912

92,048

2,468

89,580

519,720

5,507

514,213

519,720
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e BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BZE2012F3 31 HILFE

34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Note: Movements of the Company’s reserves during the current and the

prior years are as follows:

At 1 April 2010
Rights issue of shares
Transaction costs attributable to issue of new shares

Total comprehensive income for the year

At 31 March 2011

Total comprehensive expense for the year

At 31 March 2012

720104 A1H
AR
BITHR 2 R ZRA
AEREEBABE

M201143A31H
AEREERARE

2012563 A31H

34. KRR M BMRRT (2

Wit ARAZHBERNFARBEFE 2 E

ELOENE

HK$°000
TET

450,871
62,411

(439)
1,370

514,213
(15,675)

498,538

35. EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE
REPORTING PERIOD

In April 2012, the Group entered into provisional agreements to
acquire investment properties in Hong Kong from independent

third parties at an aggregate consideration of approximately

HK$81,000,000.

35. REMRARER

F2012F 4 A REBE LA £4781,000,000
BILZREBIUHEEESL

EBANNBBZIHEDS -

KBuE=
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Financial Summary
B ERRE

RESULTS ES
Year ended 31 March
HZ3ASIHLEFE
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FEr FE
Turnover ] 74,923 59,960 52,385 348,081 286,916
(Loss) profit before taxation Fr#iA1(E1E )G Al (14,979) (46,205) (16,837) 69,999 (40,670)
Taxation fi1E (2,832) (1,252) (1,221) (4,939) (2,060)
(Loss) profit for the year REE(BE)RNEGEE
attributable to owners of ~ RARTEREFA A
the Company (17,811)  (47,457)  (18,058) 65,060 | (42,730)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
At 31 March
R3AS31H
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FEr FET FET
Total assets MWEE 333,349 388,119 548,793 702,005 662,136
Total liabilities BafE (66,384) (31,539) (58,810) (73,643) (67,372
266,965 356,580 489,983 628,362 594,764
Equity attributable to ARRRIERFFE ARG
owners of the Company s 266,965 356,580 489,983 628,362 594,764

AEEXEEAERLT 2011/2012 4F#H;
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Summary of Properties
M¥ERE

At 31 March 2012
R2012%3431H

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Location

31k

1. Ground Floor
No.148 Johnston Road
Wanchai
Hong Kong
BBELT
[t § |
1485540 T

2. Ground Floor and Cockloft
No.13 Matheson Street
Causeway Bay
Hong Kong
BAREE
MR 1355
T R g

3 Two parcels of land
at an industrial site located at
the South of Hengtang Harbour,
the West of Dongliang Road,
Zhili Town, Wuxing District,
Huzhou City, Zhejiang Province
of the People’s Republic of China
with a total of six building blocks
being built
MEERATERMZ T
iz BE R BATT B M
R G B AR R AT -
BB - B R
BTS2 REY) -
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REW=

Approximate
gross floor/

saleable/

site area

Purpose wuem,/

A& ERER

(sq.ft.)

(FHIR)

Commercial 580
EES

Commercial 1,232
EES

Industrial 1,805,534
B[

Lease term

BOFH

Long

=

Long
=

Medium

&
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